
 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OH 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, October 6, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Welcome – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

 

2. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of September 1, 2016 minutes 

 Proposed Resolution 17-16: “Establishing population estimates as a 

basis for 2017 annual participation fees to be assessed members” 

 

3. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

 

4. Committee Updates 

 Building Committee – Derrick Clay, Chair 

 Regional Policy Roundtable – Laura Koprowski 

 Transportation Policy Committee – Thea Walsh 

 

5. Proposed Resolution 16-16: “Accepting the Village of Crooksville (Perry 

County) as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC)” – William Murdock 

 

6. Proposed Resolution 19-16: “Acceptance of revision to fund account 

appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission for 2016” – Shawn Hufstedler  

 

7. Bylaws Committee – Rory McGuiness, Chair 

 Proposed Resolution 18-16: “Adopting proposed changes to MORPC 

Bylaws”  

 

8. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Christina O’Keeffe 

 Proposed Resolution 20-16: “Recognizing October 2016 as Energy 

Action Month”  

 

9. Benefits & Compensation Committee – Marilyn Brown, Chair 

 Proposed Resolution EC-08-16: “Setting compensation guidelines 

and limits for the 2017 compensation year”  



Executive Committee Meeting 

October 6, 2016 

Page 2 

 

10. Draft Commission Agenda 

 

11. Other Business 

 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR 

ssaunders@morpc.org IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 

The next Executive Committee Meeting is 

Thursday, November 3, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
 
Note: Short Street is closed through November 2016. MORPC's parking lot is 
accessible via Front Street or Liberty Street. 
 
When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display the day’s meetings. 
Each meeting will list a phone extension. Use the phone in the lobby to call the 
extension and someone will come escort you to the meeting.   
 
When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor 
space or in a space marked with an “M”. Handicapped parking is available at the 
side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Executive Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, September 1, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Members Present 

Karen Angelou 

Marilyn Brown 

Derrick Clay 

Michael Ebert 

Matt Greeson 

Rory McGuiness 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Joe Stefanov 

 
MORPC Staff Present 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Nathaniel Kaelin 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

William Murdock 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Thea Walsh

 

Guests 

Mary Sigmon, Limbach Company 

 

Welcome – Rory McGuiness 

Chair Rory McGuiness called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. Chair McGuiness gave a Smart Columbus 

update. The City is now in contract with U.S. DOT and will soon be in contract with Vulcan. Kick-off meetings 

are coming soon; MORPC is invited to them all. U.S. DOT will be in Columbus September 12-13.  There will be 

five sessions for Vulcan. The City of Columbus is in contract with Murphy Epson & Engage for communications; 

CDM Smith for transportation electrification; and HNTB for intelligent transportation. The City is putting 

together a timeline for the 15 projects identified in the application. Smart Columbus is a 4-year program. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Joe Stefanov; motion passed. 

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock 

Thea Walsh represented Smart Columbus at the August 14-17 Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 

2016 Annual Meeting and Exhibition in Anaheim, California. Rory McGuiness complimented Ms. Walsh on her 

appearance representing MORPC on the August 12, 2016 “Columbus on the Record – Central Ohio’s 

Transportation Future.” Mr. McGuiness represented Columbus on the same program. On September 20, 

William Murdock will participate on a panel at the Business First Smart City Editorial Forum. Other panelists 

include Carla Bailo, OSU Assistant Vice President-Mobility Research and Business Development; Alex Fischer, 

The Columbus Partnership President and CEO; Andrew Ginther, City of Columbus Mayor; Karen Sloneker, AEP 

Customer Services & Marketing Director; and Curtis Stitt, COTA President & CEO. 

 

MORPC Team Members are working on an opportunity with Transportation for America early next year to bring 

together public/private stakeholders from our region and four other regions in Ohio to look at state 

transportation policies.  

 

On September 2, MORPC is issuing an RFQ for a leadership program for MORPC mid-level management 

focusing on professional development of MORPC employees. 

 
On August 30, 5,000 people took part in 470 conversations as part of The Columbus Foundation’s The Big 

Table Event. MORPC participated in four conversations – one at MORPC, one in Prairie Township, and two in 

Delaware County. The Columbus Foundation intends to hold The Big Table Event next year. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=R21wfRYnxFg
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=R21wfRYnxFg


Executive Committee Minutes 

September 1, 2016 

Page 2 

 
The Summit on Sustainability is October 21, 2016 and already has over 300 people registered. Sponsorships 

total over $50,000 which is ahead of the fundraising goal. The morning keynote speaker is Spencer Reeder 

from Vulcan. Local food entrepreneurs and experts will keynote at the luncheon program. Discounts are 

available for MORPC members. 

 

The insight2050 Planning Academy launched Friday, August 26 and is geared toward elected officials and 

government staff. The next session is Friday, September 9 in Dublin.  

 

In August MORPC hosted an energy briefing on the process to adopt a National Model Building Code 

developed through the International Code Council (ICC). Voting is now available online and occurs mid-

November for ICC members. In order to vote, many ICC local governments need to register their 

representatives by September 19. MORPC is reaching out to those governments that may not be current on 

their voting representatives.  

 

Benefits & Compensation Committee Update – Marilyn Brown 

The Benefits & Compensation Committee will be formed within the next week and announced at the 

September 8 Commission meeting. Contact Marilyn Brown or William Murdock if you are interested in serving 

on the committee. The first meeting will be toward the end of September.  

 

Bylaws Committee Update – Rory McGuiness 

Rory McGuiness presented the Bylaws Committee Recommendations. Copies of the proposed changes were 

provided. The recommendations formally create the Regional Data Advisory Committee, incorporate the Rural 

Transportation Planning Organization’s (RTPO) Bylaws, include operational improvements and provide 

language updates for the Sustainability Advisory Committee. The recommendations will be presented for 

approval at the October Executive Committee and Commission meetings.  

 

Reserve & Investment Advisory Committee Update – Joe Stefanov 

The Investment Advisory Committee met in August to determine how to invest the building fund. The 

committee recommends leaving $1.5 million in the cash account for 40 days operating reserve and investing 

the remainder in STAR Ohio. The committee will come back in the fourth quarter with a resolution authorizing 

the transfer. 

 

Regional Data Advisory Committee – Nancy Reger 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee (RDAC) met twice and drafted mission and vision statements and 

formed three subcommittees: Communications, Technology, and Funding.  

 

Regional Policy Roundtable Update – Laura Koprowski 

The Public Policy Agenda Working Group met in August; chaired by Kim Maggard. The draft agenda will be 

presented for review and comment at the November Executive Committee and Commission meetings, and 

presented for adoption in December. 

 

The Columbus Region Coalition is hosting a Fly-Out on September 19. U.S. Legislative Staff will come to 

Central Ohio for a tour and to learn more about the region. 

 

MORPC and Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter Team Members are meeting with Central Ohio candidates to familiarize 

them with MORPC. 

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Update – Kerstin Carr & Christina O’Keeffe 

Christina O’Keeffe reviewed the memo on MORPC’s Involvement at PUCO on Utility Energy Efficiency 

Programs. MORPC is expanding our public policy involvement at PUCO to advocate on behalf of local 

governments in support of utility energy efficiency programs. See Christina O’Keeffe, Laura Koprowski, or 

William Murdock if you have any questions. 

 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-01-2016September%202016_Bylaws.pdf
http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-01-2016Final_Bylaws%20CommitteeTrackChanges_to_Current%20Bylaws-2016-08-26.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

September 1, 2016 

Page 3 

 
The Central Ohio Greenways (COG) Board is implementing its 5-year strategic plan. The Trail Development 

Working Group is meeting with stakeholders to create trail plans in surrounding counties. The City of 

Columbus is working with MORPC to update the COG website. COG Board members are meeting with 

communities highlighting COG’s work and to gather feedback. 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee is updating the Sustainability Agenda. The agenda will be presented for 

review and comment in November and then for adoption in December. 

 

Transportation Policy Committee Update – Thea Walsh 

MORPC Team Members are working with Vulcan and Clean Fuels Ohio on electric vehicle strategies.  

 

MORPC Team Members attended the 2016 Ohio Conference on Freight in Cleveland. The conference will be in 

Columbus next year. As the organizer, MORPC wants to highlight Central Ohio. Send ideas to Thea Walsh or 

William Murdock.   

 

Proposed Resolution 11-16: “To authorize the executive director to enter into an agreement with the United 

Way of Central Ohio for up to $160,000 for a 2017 Emergency Healthy Homes Program” – Christina O’Keeffe 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve Resolution 11-16, second by Eric Phillips; motion passed. 

 

Proposed Resolution 12-16: “Authorizing the executive director to participate in contracts awarded by the 

Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) Cooperative Purchasing Program” – Thea Walsh 

Michael Ebert made a motion to approve Resolution 12-16, second by Joe Stefanov; motion passed.  

 

Proposed Resolution 13-16: “Authorizing the executive director to enter into and administer contracts for 

approximately $2.9 million with subrecipients receiving Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 

funding” – Thea Walsh 

Joe Stefanov made a motion to approve Resolution 13-16, second by Marilyn Brown; motion passed. 

 

Proposed Resolution 14-16:  “To authorize the executive director to submit an application to the Local 

Government Innovation Fund and enter into an agreement for up to $50,000 with the Ohio Development 

Services Agency for the Buckeye Lake Region 2036 Long-Range Plan” – Thea Walsh 

Rob Platte made a motion to approve Resolution 14-16, second by Michael Ebert; motion passed. 

 

Proposed Resolution 15-16: “To authorize the executive director to submit an application to the Federal 

Transit Administration and enter into an agreement for up to $400,000 with the Federal Transit 

Administration for the Mobility on Demand Sandbox Demonstration Program” – Thea Walsh 

Matt Greeson made a motion to approve Resolution 15-16, second by Eric Phillips; motion passed. 

 

Quarterly Financial Statements – Shawn Hufstedler 

Shawn Hufstedler reviewed the June 2016 Financial Report highlighting the following: 

 Cash on hand 

 Operating loss 

 Members’ dues 

 Fringe and overhead rates 

 Balance sheet 

 

Population Estimate Update – Nancy Reger 

Nancy Reger presented the Proposed Annual Population Estimate Methodology Revision. MORPC’s population 

estimates are getting further away from the U.S. Census population estimates. To close the gap, MORPC 

proposes including international migration in MORPC’s methodology.  

 

 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-01-2016Population%20Estimate%20Methodolgy.pdf


Executive Committee Minutes 

September 1, 2016 

Page 4 

 
Diversity & Inclusion Plan – Laura Koprowski & Bernice Cage 

Laura Koprowski and Bernice Cage presented the Diversity & Inclusion 2016-2017 Work Plan. In 2016 the 

Diversity & Inclusion Committee was restructured to include senior staff and board participation. The Work 

Plan has Six Focus Areas: Workforce & Leadership, Workplace, Diversity Spend, Service to Diverse 

Populations, Diversity Requirements, and Diversity Communications. The Executive Committee recommended 

raising the Diversity & Inclusion budget to $25,000 in 2017 in order to hold a Business Fair at MORPC. 

 

Franklin County Energy Study – Christina O’Keeffe 

Christina O’Keeffe gave an overview of the Franklin County Baseline Energy Study. MORPC is supporting 

Franklin County on the first-ever energy study to produce a baseline of energy supply and consumption with 

transportation, industrial, commercial and residential sectors. This data will be important in regional planning 

efforts, including the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) and Regional Sustainability Agenda. It will also 

be an important step to understand the reason why Central Ohio has a higher per capita energy use than the 

rest of Ohio and the United States.  

 

Draft Commission Agenda 

The Executive Committee reviewed the draft September 8, 2016 Commission Meeting Agenda. 

 

Executive Session 

Matt Greeson made a motion for the Executive Committee to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of 

Section 121.22 (G) (2): To consider the purchase of property for public purposes, or for the sale of property at 

competitive bidding, if premature disclosure of information would give an unfair competitive or bargaining 

advantage to a person whose personal, private interest is adverse to the general public interest; second by 

Rob Platte.  A roll call vote was conducted with all attending committee members in favor.  Executive Session 

began at 3:15 p.m. and concluded at 3:30 p.m. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Karen Angelou, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

http://morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-01-2016Diversity%20Plan.pdf
http://morpc.org/our-region/members/executive-committee/index


 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Nancy Reger, Director 

Regional Data & Mapping 

 

DATE: 

 

September 30, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 17-16: "Establishing population estimates as a 

basis for 2017 annual participation fees to be assessed members" 
 

 

The attached resolution provides population estimates for January 1, 2017 for the 

purpose of assessing participation fees from member jurisdictions. One new member 

was added to MORPC in 2016 – the Village of Crooksville in Perry County. 

The member participation fees (“dues”) are calculated using the rates adopted in 

Resolution 09-16. 

 

The method for making the estimates was modified to better align MORPC estimates 

with those produced by the U.S. Census. Historically the estimates were generated by 

applying a household size to new residential building permits. Due to an increasing 

discrepancy between the MORPC annual estimates and those of the U.S. Census, we 

made a mid-decade adjustment by adding international migration to the base 

population for each community, as these people were not being captured in the 

household method.  

 

Since 2010, approximately 40,000 people moved to the MORPC membership area 

from other countries. The data are only available at county level. To distribute the 

international migration to the community level, we used the number of people who 

were reported as moving to each community since 2010 as the community share of 

the county total. 

  

Attachment 1 is description of the methodology used. Attachment 2 is the 2017 

detailed list of population and participant fees for each MORPC member. The number 

of people added to reflect international migration and the portion of the county 

international population used are itemized separately from the number of people 

added due to housing construction.  

  

MORPC continues to use population estimates provided by Delaware County Regional 

Planning Commission for those communities that are members in both organizations.  

 

Attachment:  Resolution 17-16 
 



   

 RESOLUTION 17-16 

 

“Establishing population estimates as a basis for 2017 annual participation fees to be assessed 

members” 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC staff has developed January 1, 2017 population estimates to provide a basis for 

local dues assessments, as per the Articles of Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, 2017 participation fees are assessed at a rate of $0.5375 per capita for members within 

the federally declared Transportation Study Area boundaries of MORPC and $0.3425 for members 

not located within the Transportation Study Area, in accordance with Resolution 09-16; and  

 

WHEREAS, $0.0525 per capita is earmarked exclusively for the MORPC building/reserve, in 

accordance with Resolution 09-16; and 

 

WHEREAS, Attachment 1 describes the methodology used in making the population estimates and 

Attachment 2 sets forth the population and dues assessments for MORPC members; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the January 1, 2017 population estimates, as documented in Attachment 2, are 

hereby adopted for the purpose of assessing 2017 participation fees, as listed on 

Attachment 2. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date:  October 6, 2016 

Submitted by:  Nancy Reger, Director, Data & Mapping 

Prepared by:  Nancy Reger, Director, Data & Mapping 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 6, 2016 

 

Attachments: 1. Methodology for the 2017 Population Estimates 

2. 2017 Population Estimates and Dues Assessment of MORPC Members 

    

 



Resolution 17-16 

Attachment 1 

 

 

 

Methodology for the 2017  

Population Estimates, Household Estimates, and Dues Assessments 

for MORPC Member Communities 
 

 

Annually, MORPC prepares population and household estimates for the purpose of assessing 

membership dues. These estimates are predictions of the number of people and households in each 

member community on January 1, 2017. 

 

We’ve modified our methodology to start including international migration as a way to bring the 

MORPC and U.S. Census annual estimates closer together. The U.S. Census estimates from 2015 

were approximately 60,000 people higher than those of MORPC. 

 

The U.S. Census produces annual estimates at the county level by adding births to migrant 

population from within the U.S. and from other countries, and then subtracting deaths. They 

proportionately distribute the county population to local governments using the population share of 

the total county’s population each community represented in the 2010 census, For example,  

Columbus represented  66 percent of the Franklin County population in 2010,  and so their 2015 

population estimate is be 66 percent of the Census’ 2015 estimate of Franklin County.  

  

MORPC applies a household size to newly constructed housing units, and then adds these new 

people to the previous year’s estimate. Building or zoning permit reports are collected from each 

member community. Single family data is collected from October 2014 through June 2015 (which 

are then extrapolated to include months July-September); and multi-family units permits that were 

issued from April 2014 through March 2015.   This allows for a three month construction period for 

single family permits, and a nine month construction period for multi-family units.  

 

We feel the Census’s approach works well for some communities, but the accuracy is poor in 

communities that are not growing but are assigned population, and in communities that are growing 

rapidly but are not getting their fair share of new population. 

 

Consequently we’ve established a hybrid method. MORPC will continue to collect building permit 

data and apply household sizes as a way to convert the new housing to population, and we are 

adding international migration population. The 2017 estimates include the accrual of international 

migrant population since 2010. This is about 40,000 additional people distributed to among the 

local communities.  

 

Because international migrant population is not available for local governments on an annual basis, 

we proportionately distributed data that was available at the county level. We used information 

available from the Census that reports the number of people who have moved to each community 

from another country after 2010 to calculate the proportion of the county data to assign to each 

community.   As this is the first year for modifying the methodology, we added all international 

population coming to Central Ohio counties since 2010. Next year will include international migration 

growth from 2017-2018. 



Resolution 17-16

Attachment 2

DRAFT 2017 Member Population Estimates and Dues Statement  - REVIEW by OCTOBER 10, 2016

Member County
Government 

Type

2017 

Population

2016 

Population

2015 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2016-2017

Change in 

Population 

2015-2016

Change in 

Population 

from 2016-

2017 due to 

New Housing

(3) International 

Population 

2010-2017 

Share of 

county 

international 

migration 

used 

2017 

Households 

2016 

Households 

2015 

Households 

Change in 

Households 

2016-2017

Change in 

Households 

2015-2016

Member 

Type

2017 

Dues

2016 

Dues

2015 

Dues

Change in 

Dues 

2016-

2017

2017 

Dues 

Rate

2016 

Dues 

Rate

2015 

Dues 

Rate

CITY MEMBERS

Bexley Franklin City 13,233 13,074 13,074 159 0 0 159 0.43% 4,667 4,667 4,667 0 0 MPO $7,113 $6,798 $6,602 $314 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Canal Winchester Fairfield City 1,261 1,142 822 119 320 88 31 3.69% 391 363 272 28 91 $678 $594 $415 $84 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Canal Winchester Franklin city 6,658 6,585 6,563 73 22 55 19 0.05% 2,514 2,494 2,477 20 17 $3,579 $3,424 $3,314 $155 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Canal Winchester Total City 7,919 7,727 7,385 192 342 143 50 2,905 2,857 2,749 48 108 MPO $4,257 $4,018 $3,729 $239

Columbus Delaware City 8,994 8,590 8,063 404 527 316 88 4.17% 4,060 3,903 3,636 157 267 $4,834 $4,467 $4,072 $368 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Columbus Fairfield City 9,769 9,713 9,709 56 4 10 46 5.43% 3,522 3,519 3,518 3 1 $5,251 $5,051 $4,903 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Columbus Franklin City 842,378 800,609 792,428 41,769 8,181 10,222 31,547 85.40% 342,537 338,007 334,387 4,530 3,620 $452,778 $416,317 $400,176 $36,461 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Columbus Total City 861,141 818,912 810,200 42,229 8,712 10,548 31,681 350,119 345,429 341,541 4,690 3,888 MPO $462,863 $425,834 $409,151 $37,029

Delaware Delaware City 37,853 36,263 35,885 1,590 378 690 900 42.43% 14,065 13,799 13,657 266 142 MPO $20,346 $18,857 $18,122 $1,489 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Dublin Delaware City 4,419 4,165 4,094 254 71 12 242 11.40% 1,482 1,478 1,453 4 25 $2,375 $2,166 $2,067 $209 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Dublin Franklin City 39,285 37,061 36,971 2,224 90 359 1,864 5.05% 13,606 13,478 13,445 128 33 $21,116 $19,272 $18,670 $1,844 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Dublin Union City 3,622 3,415 3,310 207 105 207 0 0.00% 1,071 1,012 982 59 30 $1,947 $1,776 $1,672 $171 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Dublin Total City 47,325 44,641 44,375 2,684 266 578 2,106 16,160 15,968 15,880 192 88 MPO $25,437 $23,213 $22,409 $2,224

Gahanna Franklin City 33,984 33,382 33,359 602 23 84 519 1.40% 13,117 13,085 13,076 32 9 MPO $18,267 $17,359 $16,846 $908 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Grandview Heights Franklin City 7,284 6,859 6,845 425 14 360 65 0.18% 3,252 3,080 3,075 172 5 MPO $3,915 $3,567 $3,457 $349 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Grove City Franklin City 37,138 36,720 36,459 418 261 336 82 0.22% 14,502 14,376 14,278 126 98 MPO $19,962 $19,094 $18,412 $867 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Groveport Franklin City 5,638 5,604 5,597 34 7 34 0 0.00% 2,202 2,189 2,187 13 2 MPO $3,030 $2,914 $2,826 $116 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Hilliard Franklin City 30,694 29,331 28,952 1,363 379 825 537 1.45% 11,182 10,847 10,709 335 138 MPO $16,498 $15,252 $14,621 $1,246 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Marysville Union City 23,286 23,023 22,765 263 258 200 62 16.60% 7,731 7,660 7,568 71 92 Non-MPO $7,975 $7,482 $7,057 $493 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

New Albany Franklin City 9,425 9,077 8,929 348 148 201 147 0.40% 2,875 2,813 2,767 62 46 $5,066 $4,720 $4,509 $346 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

New Albany Licking City 32 24 24 8 0 0 8 1.51% 11 11 11 0 0 $17 $12 $12 $4 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

New Albany Total City 9,457 9,101 8,953 356 148 201 155 2,886 2,824 2,778 62 46 MPO $5,083 $4,733 $4,521 $350

Pataskala Licking City 15,611 15,508 15,392 103 116 80 23 4.66% 5,817 5,788 5,745 29 43 MPO $8,391 $8,064 $7,773 $327 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Pickerington Fairfield City 19,595 19,385 19,193 210 192 208 2 0.25% 6,640 6,571 6,509 69 62 $10,533 $10,080 $9,692 $452 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Pickerington Franklin City 123 123 123 0 0 0 0 0.00% 35 35 35 0 0 $66 $64 $62 $2 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Pickerington Total City 19,718 19,508 19,316 210 192 208 2 6,675 6,606 6,544 69 62 MPO $10,599 $10,144 $9,755 $455

Powell Delaware City 13,153 12,983 12,660 170 323 89 81 7.97% 4,106 4,076 4,022 30 54 MPO $7,070 $6,751 $6,393 $319 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Reynoldsburg Fairfield City 918 918 918 0 0 0 0 0.00% 485 485 485 0 0 $493 $477 $464 $16 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Reynoldsburg Franklin City 26,603 26,315 26,232 288 83 10 278 0.75% 10,934 10,930 10,895 4 35 $14,299 $13,684 $13,247 $616 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Reynoldsburg Licking City 9,019 8,952 8,952 67 0 58 9 1.76% 3,112 3,089 3,089 23 0 $4,848 $4,655 $4,521 $193 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Reynoldsburg Total 36,540 36,185 36,102 355 83 69 287 14,531 14,504 14,469 27 35 MPO $19,640 $18,816 $18,232 $824

Upper Arlington Franklin City 34,562 33,976 33,964 586 12 62 523 1.42% 13,863 13,838 13,832 25 6 MPO $18,577 $17,668 $17,152 $909 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Westerville Delaware City 8,064 7,916 7,916 148 0 0 148 6.98% 3,017 3,017 3,017 0 0 $4,334 $4,116 $3,998 $218 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Westerville Franklin City 29,831 29,356 29,002 475 354 295 180 0.49% 11,437 11,318 11,157 119 161 $16,034 $15,265 $14,646 $769 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Westerville Total City 37,895 37,272 36,918 623 354 295 328 14,454 14,335 14,174 119 161 MPO $20,369 $19,381 $18,644 $987

Whitehall Franklin City 18,433 18,091 18,091 342 0 13 329 0.89% 7,545 7,540 7,540 5 0 MPO $9,908 $9,407 $9,136 $501 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Worthington Franklin City 13,650 13,596 13,596 54 0 0 54 0.15% 5,697 5,697 5,697 0 0 MPO $7,337 $7,070 $6,866 $267 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

VILLAGE MEMBERS

Galena Delaware Village 781 763 18 18 0 0.00% 7 0 7 MPO $1,000 $800 $0 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Shawnee Hills Delaware Village 776 765 745 11 20 11 0 0.00% 296 291 288 5 3 MPO $1,000 $800 $800 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Sunbury Delaware Village 5,085 5,022 63 63 0 0.00% 10 0 10 MPO $2,733 $2,611 $0 $122 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Lithopolis Fairfield Village 1,334 1,185 1,185 149 0 149 0 0.00% 532 475 475 57 0 MPO $717 $616 $598 $101 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Lithopolis Franklin Village 65 65 65 0 0 0 0 0.00% 24 24 24 0 0 MPO $35 $34 $33 $1 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Lithopolis  Total Village 1,399 1,250 1,250 149 0 149 0 556 499 499 57 0 MPO $1,000 $800 $800 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Brice Franklin Village 114 114 114 0 0 0 0 0.00% 41 41 41 0 0 MPO $1,000 $800 $800 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Harrisburg Franklin Village 320 320 320 0 0 0 0 0.00% 138 138 138 0 0 MPO $1,000 $800 $800 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Lockbourne Franklin Village 237 237 237 0 0 0 0 0.00% 95 95 95 0 0 MPO $1,000 $800 $800 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Marble Cliff Franklin Village 573 573 573 0 0 0 0 0.00% 292 292 292 0 0 MPO $1,000 $800 $800 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Minerva Park Franklin Village 1,272 1,272 1,272 0 0 0 0 0.00% 538 538 538 0 0 MPO $1,000 $800 $800 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Obetz Franklin Village 4,665 4,591 4,591 74 0 58 16 0.04% 1,711 1,690 1,690 21 0 MPO $2,508 $2,387 $2,318 $120 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Riverlea Franklin Village 548 548 548 0 0 0 0 0.00% 222 222 222 0 0 MPO $1,000 $800 $800 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Urbancrest Franklin Village 967 960 960 7 0 0 7 0.02% 337 337 337 0 0 MPO $1,000 $800 $800 $200 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Johnstown Licking Village 4,973 4,944 4,944 29 0 0 29 5.88% 1,935 1,935 1,935 0 0 Non-MPO $1,703 $1,607 $1,533 $96 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

West Jefferson Madison Village 4,273 4,229 4,226 44 3 18 25 7.83% 1,624 1,617 1,615 7 2 Non-MPO $1,463 $1,374 $1,310 $89 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

Crooksville (1) Perry Village 2,478 0 0 0.00% 0 0 Non-MPO $1,000 $1,000 $0.3425

New Lexington Perry Village 4,768 4,768 0 4,768 0 0 0.00% 1,838 1,838 0 1,838 Non-MPO $1,633 $1,550 $83 $0.3425 $0.325

Somerset Perry Village 1,466 1,466 0 1,466 0 0 0.00% 613 613 0 613 Non-MPO $1,000 $800 $200 $0.3425 $0.325

Ashville Pickaway Village 4,104 4,104 4,104 0 0 0 0 0.00% 1,601 1,601 1,601 0 0 Non-MPO $1,406 $1,334 $1,272 $72 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

TOWNSHIP MEMBERS

Liberty Delaware Township 16,525 16,212 313 313 0 7.97% 91 0 91 0 MPO $8,882 $8,430 $452 $0.5375 $0.520

Bloom Fairfield Township 7,218 7,136 7,124 82 12 65 17 1.97% 2,557 2,534 2,530 23 4 MPO $3,880 $3,711 $3,598 $169 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Violet Fairfield Township 19,602 19,420 19,349 182 71 166 17 2.00% 6,668 6,611 6,586 57 25 MPO $10,536 $10,098 $9,771 $438 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Blendon Franklin Township 7,866 7,808 7,808 58 0 11 47 0.13% 2,878 2,874 2,874 4 0 MPO $4,228 $4,060 $3,943 $168 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Clinton Franklin Township 4,130 4,109 4,109 21 0 0 21 0.06% 1,896 1,896 1,896 0 0 MPO $2,220 $2,137 $2,075 $83 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Madison Franklin Township 10,814 10,807 10,800 7 7 2 5 0.01% 3,986 3,985 3,982 1 3 MPO $5,813 $5,620 $5,454 $193 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505



Member County
Government 

Type

2017 

Population

2016 

Population

2015 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2016-2017

Change in 

Population 

2015-2016

Change in 

Population 

from 2016-

2017 due to 

New Housing

(3) International 

Population 

2010-2017 

Share of 

county 

international 

migration 

used 

2017 

Households 

2016 

Households 

2015 

Households 

Change in 

Households 

2016-2017

Change in 

Households 

2015-2016

Member 

Type

2017 

Dues

2016 

Dues

2015 

Dues

Change in 

Dues 

2016-

2017

2017 

Dues 

Rate

2016 

Dues 

Rate

2015 

Dues 

Rate

Mifflin Franklin Township 2,470 2,466 2,462 4 4 4 0 0.00% 941 940 939 1 1 MPO $1,327 $1,282 $1,243 $45 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Perry Franklin Township 3,661 3,641 3,641 20 0 4 16 0.04% 1,339 1,338 1,338 1 0 MPO $1,968 $1,893 $1,839 $75 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Plain Franklin Township 2,149 2,142 2,142 7 0 7 0 0.00% 865 862 862 3 0 MPO $1,155 $1,114 $1,082 $41 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Prairie Franklin Township 16,681 16,505 16,498 176 7 7 168 0.46% 6,342 6,339 6,336 3 3 MPO $8,966 $8,583 $8,331 $383 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Etna Licking Township 8,928 8,847 8,723 81 124 76 5 0.96% 3,342 3,314 3,268 28 46 MPO $4,799 $4,600 $4,405 $198 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Granville Licking Township 4,259 4,225 4,190 34 35 10 24 4.80% 1,564 1,560 1,547 4 13 Non-MPO $1,459 $1,373 $1,299 $86 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

Jerome Union Township 6,210 5,844 5,407 366 437 295 71 18.87% 2,009 1,909 1,760 100 149 MPO $3,338 $3,039 $2,731 $299 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

COUNTY MEMBERS

Delaware County (2) County Total 194,693 190,141 187,277 4,552 2,864 3,093 1,459 99.96% 67,890 66,694 65,939 1,196 755 MPO $69,584 $66,152 $63,388 $3,427

City Total (10% population dues) 72,483 69,917 68,618 2,566 1,299 1,107 1,459 72.94% 26,730 26,273 25,785 457 488 MPO $3,896 $3,636 $3,465 $260

    Columbus Delaware City 8,994 8,590 8,063 404 527 316 88 4.17% 4,060 3,903 3,636 157 267 MPO $483 $447 $407 $37 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Delaware Delaware City 37,853 36,263 35,885 1,590 378 690 900 42.43% 14,065 13,799 13,657 266 142 MPO $2,035 $1,886 $1,812 $149 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Dublin (10% population in dues) Delaware City 4,419 4,165 4,094 254 71 12 242 11.40% 1,482 1,478 1,453 4 25 MPO $238 $217 $207 $21 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Powell (10% population in dues) Delaware City 13,153 12,983 12,660 170 323 89 81 7.97% 4,106 4,076 4,022 30 54 MPO $707 $675 $639 $32 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Westerville (10% population in dues) Delaware City 8,064 7,916 7,916 148 0 0 148 6.98% 3,017 3,017 3,017 0 0 MPO $433 $412 $400 $22 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Village Total (100% population in dues) City 8,851 8,730 8,566 121 164 121 0 0.00% 3,110 3,081 3,077 29 4 MPO $4,757 $4,540 $4,326 $218

    Ashley Delaware Village 1,345 1,345 1,345 0 0 0 0 0.00% 506 506 506 0 0 MPO $723 $699 $679 $24 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Galena Delaware Village 781 763 747 18 16 18 0 0.00% 255 248 247 7 1 MPO $420 $397 $377 $23 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Ostrander Delaware Village 864 835 801 29 34 29 0 0.00% 276 269 269 7 0 MPO $464 $434 $405 $30 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Shawnee Hills Delaware Village 776 765 745 11 20 11 0 0.00% 296 291 288 5 3 MPO $417 $398 $376 $19 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Sunbury Delaware Village 5,085 5,022 4,928 63 94 63 0 0.00% 1,777 1,767 1,767 10 0 MPO $2,733 $2,611 $2,489 $122 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Township Total (100% population in dues) Village 113,359 111,494 110,093 1,865 1,401 1,865 0 27.02% 38,049 37,340 37,077 709 263 MPO $60,930 $57,977 $55,597 $2,949

    Berkshire Delaware Township 3,124 2,935 2,760 189 175 189 0 0.00% 1,064 1,012 970 52 42 MPO $1,679 $1,526 $1,394 $153 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Berlin Delaware Township 7,234 7,137 7,064 97 73 97 0 0.00% 2,214 2,170 2,152 44 18 MPO $3,888 $3,711 $3,567 $177 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Brown Delaware Township 1,481 1,470 1,456 11 14 11 0 0.00% 549 544 543 5 1 MPO $796 $764 $735 $32 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Concord Delaware Township 10,647 10,546 10,454 101 92 101 0 0.00% 3,442 3,416 3,393 26 23 MPO $5,723 $5,484 $5,279 $239 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Delaware Delaware Township 2,074 2,059 2,055 15 4 15 0 1.08% 782 778 778 4 0 MPO $1,115 $1,071 $1,038 $44 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Genoa Delaware Township 25,437 25,184 25,055 253 129 253 0 9.97% 8,151 8,054 8,024 97 30 MPO $13,672 $13,096 $12,653 $577 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Harlem Delaware Township 4,186 4,130 4,096 56 34 56 0 0.00% 1,552 1,530 1,521 22 9 MPO $2,250 $2,148 $2,068 $102 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Kingston Delaware Township 2,281 2,255 2,240 26 15 26 0 0.00% 789 778 774 11 4 MPO $1,226 $1,173 $1,131 $53 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Liberty Delaware Township 16,525 16,212 16,000 313 212 313 0 7.97% 5,682 5,591 5,557 91 34 MPO $8,882 $8,430 $8,080 $452 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Marlboro Delaware Township 290 289 287 1 2 1 0 0.00% 108 108 108 0 0 MPO $156 $150 $145 $6 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Orange Delaware Township 27,743 27,048 26,491 695 557 695 0 8.00% 9,174 8,864 8,777 310 87 MPO $14,912 $14,065 $13,378 $847 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Oxford Delaware Township 1,011 1,008 1,005 3 3 3 0 0.00% 363 362 361 1 1 MPO $543 $524 $508 $19 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Porter Delaware Township 2,084 2,049 2,022 35 27 35 0 0.00% 735 724 720 11 4 MPO $1,120 $1,065 $1,021 $55 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Radnor Delaware Township 1,607 1,598 1,586 9 12 9 0 0.00% 593 587 586 6 1 MPO $864 $831 $801 $33 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Scioto Delaware Township 2,490 2,460 2,437 30 23 30 0 0.00% 946 927 921 19 6 MPO $1,338 $1,279 $1,231 $59 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Thompson Delaware Township 717 712 710 5 2 5 0 0.00% 255 254 254 1 0 MPO $385 $370 $359 $15 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Trenton Delaware Township 2,254 2,241 2,229 13 12 13 0 0.00% 802 798 796 4 2 MPO $1,212 $1,165 $1,126 $46 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Troy Delaware Township 2,174 2,161 2,146 13 15 13 0 0.00% 847 843 842 4 1 MPO $1,169 $1,124 $1,084 $40 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Franklin County (6) County Total 1,252,516 1,202,423 1,192,653 50,093 9,770 13,147 36,946 100.02% 499,483 493,805 489,572 5,679 4,233 MPO $117,438 $110,573 $106,801 $6,865

City Total (10% population dues) Franklin City 1,148,919 1,099,759 1,090,185 49,160 9,574 12,856 36,304 98.28% 459,957 454,385 450,224 5,572 4,161 $61,754 $57,187 $55,054 $4,567

    Bexley (10% population in dues) Franklin City 13,233 13,074 13,074 159 0 0 159 0.43% 4,667 4,667 4,667 0 0 MPO $711 $680 $660 $31 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Canal Winchester (10% population in dues) Franklin City 6,658 6,585 6,563 73 22 55 19 0.05% 2,505 2,485 2,477 20 8 MPO $358 $342 $331 $15 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Columbus (10% population in dues) Franklin City 842,378 800,609 792,428 41,769 8,181 10,222 31,547 85.40% 342,537 338,007 334,387 4,530 3,620 MPO $45,278 $41,632 $40,018 $3,646 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Dublin (10% population in dues) Franklin City 39,285 37,061 36,971 2,224 90 359 1,864 5.05% 13,606 13,478 13,445 128 33 MPO $2,112 $1,927 $1,867 $184 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Gahanna (10% population in dues) Franklin City 33,984 33,382 33,359 602 23 84 519 1.40% 13,117 13,085 13,076 32 9 MPO $1,827 $1,736 $1,685 $91 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Grandview Heights (10% population in dues) Franklin City 7,284 6,859 6,845 425 14 360 65 0.18% 3,252 3,080 3,075 172 5 MPO $392 $357 $346 $35 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Grove City (10% population in dues) Franklin City 37,138 36,720 36,459 418 261 336 82 0.22% 14,502 14,376 14,278 126 98 MPO $1,996 $1,909 $1,841 $87 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Groveport (10% population in dues) Franklin City 5,638 5,604 5,597 34 7 34 0 0.00% 2,202 2,189 2,187 13 2 MPO $303 $291 $283 $12 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Hilliard (10% population in dues) Franklin City 30,694 29,331 28,952 1,363 379 825 537 1.45% 11,182 10,847 10,709 335 138 MPO $1,650 $1,525 $1,462 $125 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    New Albany (10% population in dues) Franklin City 9,425 9,077 8,929 348 148 201 147 0.40% 2,875 2,813 2,767 62 46 MPO $507 $472 $451 $35 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Pickerington (10% population in dues) Franklin City 123 123 123 0 0 0 0 0.00% 35 35 35 0 0 MPO $7 $6 $6 $0 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Reynoldsburg (10% population in dues) Franklin City 26,603 26,315 26,232 288 83 10 278 0.75% 10,934 10,930 10,895 4 35 MPO $1,430 $1,368 $1,325 $62 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Upper Arlington (10% population in dues) Franklin City 34,562 33,976 33,964 586 12 62 523 1.42% 13,863 13,838 13,832 25 6 MPO $1,858 $1,767 $1,715 $91 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Westerville (10% population in dues) Franklin City 29,831 29,356 29,002 475 354 295 180 0.49% 11,437 11,318 11,157 119 161 MPO $1,603 $1,527 $1,465 $77 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Whitehall (10% population in dues) Franklin City 18,433 18,091 18,091 342 0 13 329 0.89% 7,545 7,540 7,540 5 0 MPO $991 $941 $914 $50 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Worthington (10% population in dues) Franklin City 13,650 13,596 13,596 54 0 0 54 0.15% 5,697 5,697 5,697 0 0 MPO $734 $707 $687 $27 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Village Total (100 % populaton dues) 9,405 9,300 9,300 105 0 58 47 0.13% 3,644 3,623 3,623 21 0 $5,055 $4,836 $4,697 $219

    Brice Franklin Village 114 114 114 0 0 0 0 0.00% 41 41 41 0 0 MPO $61 $59 $58 $2 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Harrisburg Franklin Village 320 320 320 0 0 0 0 0.00% 138 138 138 0 0 MPO $172 $166 $162 $6 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Lithopolis Franklin Village 65 65 65 0 0 0 0 0.00% 24 24 24 0 0 MPO $35 $34 $33 $1 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Lockbourne Franklin Village 237 237 237 0 0 0 0 0.00% 95 95 95 0 0 MPO $127 $123 $120 $4 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Marble Cliff Franklin Village 573 573 573 0 0 0 0 0.00% 292 292 292 0 0 MPO $308 $298 $289 $10 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Minerva Park Franklin Village 1,272 1,272 1,272 0 0 0 0 0.00% 538 538 538 0 0 MPO $684 $661 $642 $22 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Obetz Franklin Village 4,665 4,591 4,591 74 0 58 16 0.04% 1,711 1,690 1,690 21 0 MPO $2,508 $2,387 $2,318 $120 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Riverlea Franklin Village 548 548 548 0 0 0 0 0.00% 222 222 222 0 0 MPO $295 $285 $277 $10 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Urbancrest Franklin Village 967 960 960 7 0 0 7 0.02% 337 337 337 0 0 MPO $520 $499 $485 $21 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Valleyview Franklin Village 643 620 620 23 0 0 23 0.06% 246 246 246 0 0 MPO $346 $322 $313 $23 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Township Total (100% population dues 94,193 93,364 93,168 829 196 233 596 1.61% 35,882 35,797 35,724 85 72 $50,629 $48,549 $47,050 $2,079

    Blendon Franklin Township 7,866 7,808 7,808 58 0 11 47 0.13% 2,879 2,874 2,874 4 0 MPO $4,228 $4,060 $3,943 $168 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Brown Franklin Township 2,298 2,291 2,279 7 12 7 0 0.00% 797 795 790 2 5 MPO $1,235 $1,191 $1,151 $44 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Clinton Franklin Township 4,130 4,109 4,109 21 0 0 21 0.06% 1,896 1,896 1,896 0 0 MPO $2,220 $2,137 $2,075 $83 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Franklin Franklin Township 9,794 9,651 9,651 143 0 0 143 0.39% 3,754 3,754 3,754 0 0 MPO $5,264 $5,019 $4,874 $245 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505



Member County
Government 

Type

2017 

Population

2016 

Population

2015 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2016-2017

Change in 

Population 

2015-2016

Change in 

Population 

from 2016-

2017 due to 

New Housing

(3) International 

Population 

2010-2017 

Share of 

county 

international 

migration 

used 

2017 

Households 

2016 

Households 

2015 

Households 

Change in 

Households 

2016-2017

Change in 

Households 

2015-2016

Member 

Type

2017 

Dues

2016 

Dues

2015 

Dues

Change in 

Dues 

2016-

2017

2017 

Dues 

Rate

2016 

Dues 

Rate

2015 

Dues 

Rate

    Hamilton Franklin Township 4,441 4,441 4,441 0 0 0 0 0.00% 1,829 1,829 1,829 0 0 MPO $2,387 $2,310 $2,243 $78 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Jackson Franklin Township 4,132 4,117 4,110 15 7 15 0 0.00% 1,564 1,558 1,555 6 3 MPO $2,221 $2,141 $2,076 $80 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Jefferson Franklin Township 11,009 10,861 10,725 148 136 148 0 0.00% 3,902 3,849 3,801 53 48 MPO $5,917 $5,648 $5,416 $269 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Madison Franklin Township 10,814 10,807 10,800 7 7 2 5 0.01% 3,986 3,985 3,982 1 3 MPO $5,813 $5,620 $5,454 $193 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Miffilin Franklin Township 2,469 2,466 2,462 4 4 4 0 0.00% 942 940 939 1 1 MPO $1,327 $1,282 $1,243 $45 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Norwich Franklin Township 4,002 4,002 3,994 0 8 0 0 0.00% 1,669 1,669 1,667 0 2 MPO $2,151 $2,081 $2,017 $70 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Perry Franklin Township 3,661 3,641 3,641 20 0 4 16 0.04% 1,339 1,338 1,338 1 0 MPO $1,968 $1,893 $1,839 $75 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Plain Franklin Township 2,149 2,142 2,142 7 0 7 0 0.00% 864 862 862 3 0 MPO $1,155 $1,114 $1,082 $41 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Pleasant Franklin Township 6,405 6,377 6,369 28 8 28 0 0.00% 2,402 2,392 2,389 10 3 MPO $3,442 $3,316 $3,216 $126 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Prairie Franklin Township 16,681 16,505 16,498 176 7 7 168 0.46% 6,342 6,339 6,336 3 3 MPO $8,966 $8,583 $8,331 $383 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Sharon Franklin Township 1,852 1,852 1,852 0 0 0 0 0.00% 855 855 855 0 0 MPO $995 $963 $935 $32 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Truro Franklin Township 1,304 1,304 1,304 0 0 0 0 0.00% 474 474 474 0 0 MPO $701 $678 $659 $23 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Washington Franklin Township 1,186 990 983 196 7 0 196 0.53% 386 386 383 0 3 MPO $638 $515 $496 $123 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

Ross County County Total 78,533 78,320 78,263 213 57 13 216 100.00% 29,004 28,998 28,977 6 21 Non-MPO $20,128 $19,040 $18,144 $1,088 $0.3250 $0.325 $0.310

City Total City 21,961 21,928 21,928 33 0 13 36 10.27% 9,422 9,416 9,416 6 0 $752 $713 $680 $40

    Chillicothe (10% population in dues) Ross City 21,961 21,928 21,928 33 0 13 21 10.27% 9,422 9,416 9,416 6 0 Non-MPO $752 $713 $680 $40 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

Village Total (100% population in dues) Village 4,040 3,995 3,995 45 0 0 45 22.60% 1,664 1,664 1,664 0 0 Non-MPO $1,384 $1,298 $1,238 $85

    Adelphi Ross Village 388 380 380 8 0 0 8 3.86% 154 154 154 0 0 Non-MPO $133 $124 $118 $9 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Bainbridge Ross Village 868 860 860 8 0 0 8 3.86% 357 357 357 0 0 Non-MPO $297 $280 $267 $18 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Clarksburg Ross Village 463 455 455 8 0 0 8 3.86% 166 166 166 0 0 Non-MPO $158 $148 $141 $11 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Frankfort Ross Village 1,071 1,064 1,064 7 0 0 7 3.66% 449 449 449 0 0 Non-MPO $367 $346 $330 $21 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Kingston Ross Village 1,039 1,032 1,032 7 0 0 7 3.51% 458 458 458 0 0 Non-MPO $356 $335 $320 $20 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    South Salem Ross Village 212 204 204 8 0 0 8 3.86% 80 80 80 0 0 Non-MPO $73 $66 $63 $6 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

Township Total (100% population in dues) Township 52,531 52,397 52,340 134 57 0 134 67.13% 17,918 17,918 17,897 0 21 $17,992 $17,029 $16,225 $963

    Buckskin Ross Township 1,851 1,843 1,835 8 8 0 8 3.86% 658 658 655 0 3 Non-MPO $634 $599 $569 $35 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Colerain Ross Township 1,784 1,774 1,771 10 3 0 10 5.01% 665 665 664 0 1 Non-MPO $611 $577 $549 $34 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Concord Ross Township 3,437 3,436 3,432 1 4 0 1 0.50% 1,270 1,270 1,268 0 2 Non-MPO $1,177 $1,117 $1,064 $60 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Deerfield Ross Township 611 603 603 8 0 0 8 3.86% 237 237 237 0 0 Non-MPO $209 $196 $187 $13 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Franklin Ross Township 1,720 1,712 1,712 8 0 0 8 3.86% 654 654 654 0 0 Non-MPO $589 $556 $531 $33 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Green Ross Township 3,910 3,907 3,896 3 11 0 3 1.45% 1,483 1,483 1,479 0 4 Non-MPO $1,339 $1,270 $1,208 $69 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Harrison Ross Township 1,331 1,324 1,324 8 0 0 8 3.86% 514 514 514 0 0 Non-MPO $456 $430 $410 $26 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Huntington Ross Township 6,270 6,256 6,245 13 11 0 13 6.56% 2,282 2,282 2,278 0 4 Non-MPO $2,147 $2,033 $1,936 $114 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Jefferson Ross Township 1,008 1,001 1,001 8 0 0 8 3.86% 394 394 394 0 0 Non-MPO $345 $325 $310 $20 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Liberty Ross Township 2,659 2,643 2,639 16 4 0 16 7.82% 1,040 1,040 1,038 0 2 Non-MPO $911 $859 $818 $52 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Paint Ross Township 1,373 1,365 1,365 8 0 0 8 3.86% 536 536 536 0 0 Non-MPO $470 $444 $423 $27 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Paxton Ross Township 1,264 1,256 1,256 8 0 0 8 3.86% 474 474 474 0 0 Non-MPO $433 $408 $389 $25 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Scioto Ross Township 5,844 5,843 5,836 1 7 0 1 0.70% 2,440 2,440 2,437 0 3 Non-MPO $2,002 $1,899 $1,809 $103 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Springfield Ross Township 2,682 2,669 2,661 14 8 0 14 6.86% 1,078 1,078 1,075 0 3 Non-MPO $919 $867 $825 $51 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Twin Ross Township 3,413 3,404 3,404 9 0 0 9 4.56% 1,290 1,290 1,290 0 0 Non-MPO $1,169 $1,106 $1,055 $63 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Union Ross Township 13,373 13,360 13,360 13 0 0 13 6.66% 2,904 2,904 2,904 0 0 Non-MPO $4,580 $4,342 $4,142 $238 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

Union County (4) County Total 58,272 56,802 55,877 1,470 925 1,094 376 100.00% 19,836 19,461 19,145 375 316 Non-MPO $12,945 $11,934 $11,166 $1,012 $0.3250 $0.325 $0.310

City Total (10% population in dues) City 26,907 26,438 26,075 469 363 407 62 16.60% 8,802 8,672 8,550 130 122 $992 $926 $873 $66

    Dublin (10% population in dues) Union City 3,622 3,415 3,310 207 105 207 0 0.00% 1,071 1,012 982 59 30 MPO $195 $178 $167 $17 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Marysville (10% population in dues) Union City 23,286 23,023 22,765 263 258 200 62 16.60% 7,731 7,660 7,568 71 92 Non-MPO $798 $748 $706 $49 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

Village Total (100% population in dues) Village 4,638 4,510 4,510 128 0 57 71 18.92% 1,779 1,757 1,757 22 0 $1,588 $1,466 $1,398 $123

    Magnetic Springs Union Village 268 254 254 14 0 0 14 3.79% 110 110 110 0 0 Non-MPO $92 $83 $79 $9 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Milford Center Union Village 852 834 834 18 0 5 13 3.50% 305 303 303 2 0 Non-MPO $292 $271 $259 $21 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Plain City Union Village 1,004 938 938 66 0 52 14 3.79% 403 383 383 20 0 Non-MPO $344 $305 $291 $39 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Richwood Union Village 2,273 2,258 2,258 15 0 0 15 4.04% 883 883 883 0 0 Non-MPO $779 $734 $700 $45 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Unionville Center Union Village 240 226 226 14 0 0 14 3.79% 78 78 78 0 0 Non-MPO $82 $73 $70 $9 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

Township Total (100% populaton in dues) Township 26,726 25,854 25,292 872 562 630 242 64.48% 9,255 9,032 8,838 223 194 $10,365 $9,542 $8,895 $823

    Allen Union Township 2,489 2,452 2,439 38 13 21 16 4.38% 780 773 769 7 4 Non-MPO $853 $797 $756 $56 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Claibourne Union Township 1,317 1,317 1,305 0 12 0 0 0.00% 480 480 476 0 4 Non-MPO $451 $428 $405 $23 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Darby Union Township 2,012 1,970 1,931 42 39 24 18 4.83% 706 697 683 9 14 Non-MPO $689 $640 $599 $49 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Dover Union Township 2,183 2,148 2,136 35 12 6 29 7.64% 809 807 802 2 5 Non-MPO $748 $698 $662 $50 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Jackson Union Township 1,008 991 991 17 0 3 14 3.79% 347 346 346 1 0 Non-MPO $345 $322 $307 $23 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Jerome Union Township 6,210 5,844 5,407 366 437 295 71 18.87% 2,009 1,909 1,760 100 149 MPO $3,338 $3,039 $2,731 $299 $0.5375 $0.520 $0.505

    Leesburg Union Township 1,182 1,158 1,155 23 3 9 14 3.79% 432 428 427 3 1 Non-MPO $405 $377 $358 $28 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Liberty Union Township 2,071 2,044 2,031 27 13 12 14 3.79% 686 682 678 4 4 Non-MPO $709 $664 $630 $45 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Millcreek Union Township 1,360 1,340 1,336 20 4 6 14 3.74% 504 502 500 2 2 Non-MPO $466 $435 $414 $30 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Paris Union Township 1,970 1,741 1,730 229 11 229 0 0.10% 734 649 645 85 4 Non-MPO $675 $566 $536 $109 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Taylor Union Township 1,619 1,600 1,600 19 0 0 19 4.93% 571 571 571 0 0 Non-MPO $554 $520 $496 $34 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Union Union Township 1,009 1,003 999 6 4 6 0 0.00% 372 370 368 2 2 Non-MPO $346 $326 $310 $20 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    Washington Union Township 873 850 846 23 4 6 17 4.48% 316 314 313 2 1 Non-MPO $299 $276 $262 $23 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

    York Union Township 1,424 1,397 1,386 27 11 12 16 4.14% 508 504 500 4 4 Non-MPO $488 $454 $430 $34 $0.3425 $0.325 $0.310

MORPC TOTAL 1,703,621 1,643,652 1,622,925 59,969 20,727 18,276 39,231 658,464 650,881 642,819 7,583 8,060 $998,747 $929,726 $885,437 $69,021

(1) New Member in 2016

(2) Population for Delaware County communities, except for Delaware City and portions of Columbus, Dublin and Westerville inside Delaware County are prepared by the Delaware County Regional Planning Commisison

(3) 2017 estimates include international migrant population accrued between 2010 - 2017.



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

William Murdock 

Executive Director 

 

DATE: 

 

September 30, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 16-16: “Accepting the Village of Crooksville 

(Perry County) as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission (MORPC)” 

 
 

 

The Village of Crooksville Council met August 2, 2016 and voted to authorize 

the Village to become a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission (MORPC). The attached resolution accepts the Village of 

Crooksville as a member of MORPC, which will help meet the desire of 

MORPC’s membership to continue to grow the organization for the benefit of a 

stronger Central Ohio region. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 16-16 



RESOLUTION 16-16 

 

“Accepting the Village of Crooksville (Perry County) as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission (MORPC)” 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Crooksville recognizes the need for collaborative, cooperative planning in 

order to ensure continued growth and prosperity; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s mission is to be the regional voice and a catalyst for sustainability and eco-

nomic prosperity in order to secure a competitive advantage for Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Crooksville has petitioned for membership in MORPC; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of MORPC’s members to continue to grow for the benefit of strong collabo-

ration on regional issues; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Crooksville will be assessed $203 for 2016 pro-rated dues based 

on 2016 population; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Crooksville Council voted to join MORPC and passed a resolution to accept 

the conditions of membership contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Village of Crooksville is accepted as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning Commission. 

 

Section 2. That the Bylaws provide that one (1) representative for the Village of Crooksville is 

eligible to serve as a voting member at the MORPC Commission meetings. 

 

Section 3. That the Village of Crooksville shall be entitled to the same regular services of 

MORPC as other members and that any special services will be purchased by the vil-

lage based on standard MORPC rates.   

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: October 1, 2016 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Eileen Leuby, Member Services Coordinator, Public & Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 13, 2016 



 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

 

DATE: 

 

September 30, 2016 

 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 19-16:  "Acceptance of revision to fund account 

appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission for 2016" 

 

 

This resolution establishes revised appropriation levels for the agency. The purpose 

of this authorization is to authorize transfer appropriations to be consistent with the 

Investment Advisory Committee decisions regarding investment of MORPC funds.  

 

The proposed transfers to authorize are as follows: 

 Transfer $300,000 from the main operating account to the Operating 

Reserve. (This will be completed upon passage of this resolution. There are 

sufficient funds in the main operating account to allow some of the cash to 

be transferred to the Operating Reserve to be invested.) 

 Transfer $500,000 out of the Operating Reserve to the main operating 

account. (This transfer will only occur if needed in accordance with the 

operating reserve policy.  A transfer is not expected to occur in 2016 as there 

is no anticipated need for operating cash flow purposes.) 

 Transfer $100,000 out of the Operating Reserve to the main operating 

account. (This transfer authorization is for the management reserve, if 

needed, to fund new intended revenue-generating activity and/or relatively 

minor shortages in funding for certain programs.  A related transfer is not 

expected to occur in 2016 as there is no anticipated need to initiate new 

revenue-generating activities this quarter nor fund any minor net losses for 

programs before the end of the year.) 

 Transfer $50,000 out of the main operating account to the Operating 

Reserve. (This authorization is for the purpose of transferring positive net 

income from certain program groups to be invested in the Operating and 

Management Reserves in accordance with the Operating Reserve Policy. This 

transfer may occur in 2016 depending on positive net income of certain 

program groups.) 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 19-16 
 
 



RESOLUTION 19-16 

 

“Acceptance of revision to fund account appropriations for the operation of the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning Commission for 2016” 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission annually adopts the agency budget and fund account appropriations; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, periodic appropriation and/or budget changes may be necessary during the year to carry 

out the intended work of the organization; and 

 

WHEREAS, no budget revision is currently needed; and  

 

WHEREAS, transfer appropriations are needed to effectuate the activities relating to the newly ap-

proved Operating Reserve Policy; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee concurs with the appropriation revision; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the finance director is hereby authorized and directed to adopt the 2016 gen-

eral fund appropriations as shown below and transfer funds up to the amounts listed 

in the transfer appropriation lines below. 

 

    Franklin         

Fund Org. County  2016 2016   

No. No. Object  Appropriations Appropriations   

    Code Account Title Budget Budget Change 

9013 13570 510000 Salaries $4,800,547  $4,800,547  $0  

9013 13570 515000 Fringe Benefits 1,815,834 1,815,834 $0  

9013 13570 520000 Services & Charges and Materials 7,221,596 7,221,596 $0  

9013 13570 540000 
Capital outlay – Equipment, Prop-

erty Acquisition & Rehab 
230,000 230,000 $0  

9043 43570 540000 Capital outlay – Building 25,000 25,000 $0  

9043 43570 520000 Services & Charges and Materials 100,000 100,000 $0  

      TOTAL $14,192,977  $14,192,977  $0  

      Initial Transfer(s):       

9043 43570 575100 Transfer Appropriation - Out $125,000  $125,000  $0  

9013 13570 475100 Transfer Appropriation - In $125,000  $125,000  $0  

      Transfer for Operating Reserve       

9013 13570 573300 Transfer Appropriation - Out $0  $300,000  $300,000  

9042 42570 473300 Transfer Appropriation - In $0  $300,000  $300,000  

9042 42570 573300 Transfer Appropriation - Out $0  $500,000  $500,000  

9013 13570 473300 Transfer Appropriation - In $0  $500,000  $500,000  



Resolution 19-16 

Page 2 

 

   

      

Transfer for Management Re-

serve   
    

9042 42570 573300 Transfer Appropriation - Out $0  $100,000  $100,000  

9013 13570 473300 Transfer Appropriation - In $0  $100,000  $100,000  

      

Transfer for Operating and 

Management Reserves   
    

9013 13570 573300 Transfer Appropriation - Out $0  $50,000  $50,000  

9042 42570 473300 Transfer Appropriation - In $0  $50,000  $50,000  

 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall deem 

necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3.  That the finance director, upon consultation with the Director of Operations, is au-

thorized and directed to make any necessary allocation changes within a single fund 

of the appropriations up to 5 percent of the total appropriations to accommodate 

operating and accounting requirements of the Commission. 

 

Section 4.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

_________________________________________  

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: October 13, 2016 

Submitted by: Shawn P. Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Prepared by:  Shawn P. Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 13, 2016 

    

 



 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Rory McGuiness, Chair 

MORPC Bylaws Committee 

 

DATE: 

 

September 30, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 18-16: " Adopting proposed changes to 

MORPC Bylaws” 

 
 

 

The Bylaws Committee recently reviewed the current bylaws to evaluate necessary 

changes. The primary purpose of the review was to incorporate new permanent 

committees to the Commission to formally recognize these priority areas. 

Additionally, updates to current committee language and minor operational changes 

are addressed in the proposed revised Bylaws.  

 

The proposed amendments formally creates the Regional Data Advisory Committee, 

incorporates the Rural Transportation Planning Organization Bylaws, includes 

language updates for the Sustainability Advisory Committee, and makes minor 

changes for operational improvement. The amendments are effective upon approval 

by the Commission.  

 

Attachment:  Resolution 18-16 



RESOLUTION 18-16 

 

“Adopting proposed changes to MORPC Bylaws” 

 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) to make efficient 
and effective use of its resources while maintaining compliance with all federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations applicable to it; and 

 
WHEREAS, MORPC’s Bylaws Committee reviewed and discussed the current bylaws and has pre-
pared proposed changes to the Bylaws; and 
 

WHEREAS, the primary purpose of the review was to incorporate new permanent committees to the 

Commission to formally recognize these priority areas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Bylaws Committee also proposed updates to current committee language and minor 

operational changes in the proposed revised Bylaws; and  

 
WHEREAS, the committee recommends adoption of the attached Bylaws; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Commission adopts the proposed changes to the Bylaws. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: October 13, 2016 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Shawn P. Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 13, 2016 

 
Attachment(s): 1. Proposed changes to Bylaws with track changes 
   2. Revised Bylaws 
 
 



Resolution 18-16 

Attachment 1 

________      

Amended April 19, 2001 by adoption of Resolution 8-01 

Amended November 15, 2001 by adoption of Resolution 29-01 

Amended April 21, 2005 by adoption of Resolution 13-05 

Amended November 10, 2011 by adoption of Resolution 46-11 

Amended September 19, 2013 by adoption of Resolution 21-13 

Amended June 12, 2014 by adoption of Resolution 16-14 

Amended October _, 2016 by adoption of Resolution _-16 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION  

BYLAWS 

SECTION I – COMMISSION 

 
A. PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 

 

On matters not addressed by the Articles of Agreement or Bylaws, Robert’s Rules of Order revised 

(current version) shall govern the meetings of MORPC and meetings of all committees included in 

these bylaws.  

 

B. REPRESENTATION 

 

Representatives to the COMMISSION must be selected as follows: 

 

1. Representation on the COMMISSION   

 

a) Representation for municipalities and for the unincorporated portions of townships shall be 

based upon the entire population of the municipality or the unincorporated portion of the 

township as reported in the most recent U.S. Census or MORPC estimate.   

 

b) Representation for counties shall be based upon the entire population of the villages and un-

incorporated portions of townships within that county plus 10% of the population of the cities 

within that county as reported in the most recent U.S. census or MORPC estimate.  In addi-

tion, the county engineer’s office of counties which are entirely within the MORPC Metropoli-

tan Planning Organization boundary shall be represented on the COMMISSION.   

 

c) Representation on the COMMISSION for full members shall be determined based upon Table 

1  Full Member Representation.   

 

d) Associate members shall have such representation as may be established by the COMMIS-

SION. 

 

Table 1:  Full Member Representation 

  Full Member Population Range 

Representatives Minimum Maximum 

1                    1           10,000  

2          10,001           40,000  

3          40,001           60,000  

4          60,001           80,000  

5          80,001        100,000  

6       100,001        120,000  

7       120,001        140,000  

8       140,001        160,000  

9       160,001        180,000  

10       180,001        200,000  

11       200,001        250,000  

12       250,001        300,000  

13       300,001        400,000  

14       400,001        500,000  



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

2 

 

15       500,001  and up 

2. Appointing Authority 

 

a) Full member representatives shall be appointed and submitted to MORPC in writing by the 

mayor, chief executive officer, council president serving as mayor, or legislative body as de-

termined by the local unit of government.   

 

b) Associate member representatives shall be appointed by such means as may be established 

by the COMMISSION. 

 

C. FINANCIAL PROVISIONS AND APPORTIONMENT OF COSTS 

 

Each year the COMMISSION shall adopt a fee schedule by July 31 to be used in assessing members 

for the upcoming calendar year.  In every year evenly divisible by five, the COMMISSION shall estab-

lish a five-year fee schedule which it shall not exceed when adopting fees for each upcoming year.  

Each year the COMMISSION shall provide a non-binding estimate of fees for the next five (5) years for 

members to use in their financial planning.   

 

Each participating municipality, participating county and member township shall contribute annually 

according to the fee schedule adopted by the COMMISSION.  When per-capita fees are used, each 

member township shall contribute based on the population used to calculate its representation in 

Section I.B. 

 

The contribution for the first year of membership shall be paid during the month following the execu-

tion of an agreement between the member and the COMMISSION, and shall amount to that part of 

the appropriate annual participation cost pro-rated on the basis of the balance of the time remaining 

in that calendar year. 

 

In addition each participating full member shall contribute not more than seven (7) cents per capita 

of its population equal to its population used to calculate its representation in Section I.B.  The funds 

so contributed shall be set aside in a separate fund to amortize lease payments on the building or 

buildings housing the COMMISSION'S offices and shall be used for no other purpose.  In the event 

that the COMMISSION decides that further capital improvements are needed after this lease is paid 

out, the seven cents will continue to be committed to such purpose.  If they are not needed, then 

these contributions shall cease. 

 

Associate members shall contribute at the rate and in the manner as may be established at the time 

they become a participant, but this rate and manner may be revised by the COMMISSION from time to 

time. 

 

When per-capita fees are used in assessing annual member fees, all current year population figures 

for municipalities, townships and counties shall be based on the latest U.S. Census when available, or 

an estimate thereof made by the COMMISSION. 

 

D. QUORUM 

 

1. A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any COMMISSION 

meeting and/or committee meeting.  An affirmative vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary 

for any action taken.   

 

E. CODE OF ETHICS 

 

All members of the COMMISSION and all committees included within these Bylaws shall be aware of 

and governed by the current Code of Ethics adopted by MORPC. 

 

 

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

3 

 

 

SECTION II – EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 

A.  MEMBERSHIP 

 

 1. In 1998, one-half of the members were appointed for a one-year term and one-half of the mem-

bers for a two-year term by the COMMISSION at an annual meeting.  Thereafter, members are 

appointed for two-year terms by the COMMISSION at the annual meeting.  Nominees shall be 

from recommendations by the Nominating Committee, with input from the officers and Executive 

Committee.  Any member may be reappointed to an additional two terms of two years each (max-

imum membership of six years). 

 

 2. Additional voting members shall consist of the current officers, the most recent past chair willing 

to serve, selected committee chairs and working group chairs during the tenure of their groups. 

 

 3. The Nominating Committee shall attempt to encourage a diversity of membership representation 

on the Executive Committee by taking into consideration the following constituency groups: 

 

a) Representation from Columbus, suburbs, counties, villages  and townships 

b) Members who are elected and nonelected 

c) Members who are full-time (career) and part-time public officials 

 

 4. The vice chair of the COMMISSION shall chair the Executive Committee. 

 

B.   EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE DUTIES 

 

 1. The Executive Committee shall: 

 

a) Review, study and approve operational policy and routine financial and administrative mat-

ters as necessary. 

 

b) With the COMMISSION, develop and recommend public policy matters for discussion, input 

and approval. 

 

c) Develop, monitor and recommend changes to the COMMISSION in the overall strategic direc-

tion of the organization.  

 

  d) Meet monthly as necessary. 

  

  e) Be responsible for other duties as may be delegated or assigned to it by the COMMISSION. 

 

 2. The Executive Committee shall act on behalf of the full COMMISSION with regard to personnel 

matters.  Such authority shall include but not be limited to the following: 

 

a) Establishing annual compensation limits within amounts budgeted and appropriated by the 

COMMISSION for salaries and benefits. 

 

b) Reviewing and adopting personnel policies to be maintained in an employee guidebook. 

 

c) Making final and binding decisions on discrimination grievances as required by MORPC’s Af-

firmative Action program. 

 

d) Subject to the Articles of Agreement, establishing proper level of personnel decision-making 

authority for the executive director and directors and monitor staff personnel activities 

monthly. 

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

4 

 

 3. The Executive Committee shall periodically review and recommend revisions to the COMMIS-

SION’s general administrative policies and rules.   

 

SECTION III – FINANCIAL AUTHORIZATIONS 

 

A. The COMMISSION shall at least annually approve an operating and capital budget and authorize ap-

propriations. 

 

B. Subject to an approved budget and appropriation, the authority to make obligations or enter into 

agreements shall be: 

 

1. Department heads and directors for obligations up to $2,000  

 

2.1. Executive director for obligations agreements up to $75,000 

 

3.2. Executive director plus an Executive Committee resolution for obligations and agreements greater 

than $75,000  

 

C. The following approvals shall be required to authorize the expenditure obligations of funds for goods 

and services (e.g. purchase order) and for the approval of payments (e.g. invoices): 

 

1. Finance director shall authorize all expenditures and obligations and payments. 

 

2. Chief of staff or director of operations shall authorize all expenditures and obligations and pay-

ments over $2,00010,000. 

 

3. Executive director shall authorize all obligations and payments greater than $25,000. 

 

3.4. Executive director and COMMISSION chair (or alternate officer) shall authorize all expenditures 

and obligations and payments greater than $25,00050,000. 

 

5. Executive director shall authorize all expenditures and payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the 

chief of staff or director of operations or finance director, regardless of amount.   

 

4.6. Chief of staff or director of operations shall authorize all payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the 

finance director, regardless of amount.   

 

5.7. The COMMISSION chair shall approve all expenditures and payments (e.g. reimbursements) to 

the executive director or any MORPC COMMISSION member, regardless of amount.  If the COM-

MISSION chair is unavailable, an alternate officer may approve; however, no official may author-

ize or sign for his/her own expenditure or payment.  Furthermore, no official may be the sole ap-

proval authority for any individual transaction.  Another officer shall authorize all expenditures 

and payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the COMMISSION chair. 

 

6. If an emergency exists iIn the absence of the finance director, the assistant finance director or 

equivalent staff member serving as the acting finance director may approve paymentsshall have 

the above authority in this Section III of the finance director. In the absence of the chief of staff or 

director of operations, the staff member serving as the acting chief of staff or director of opera-

tions shall have the above authority in this Section III of the acting chief of staff or director of op-

erations. If an emergency exists iIn the absence of the executive director, the chief of staff or al-

ternately designated acting executive director may authorize paymentsshall have the above au-

thority in this Section III of the executive director.  An emergency exists when circumstances pre-

sent the need to:   

7.  

8. meet a deadline or commitment 

9. take advantage of a discount or opportunity 

10. avoid a penalty 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

5 

 

 

 

SECTION IV – LAND USE PLANNING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (LUPAC) 

 

A. PURPOSE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE LUPAC 

 

1.  a) LUPAC has been delegated the responsibility to review “small” township rezoning cases in un-

incorporated areas of Franklin County and make recommendations as required by Section 

519.12(E) of the Ohio Revised Code to the township on behalf of the MORPC COMMISSION. 

 

    b) The purpose of the LUPAC is to review rezoning cases in Franklin County for townships with 

township zoning. 

 

    c) All “large” township rezoning cases shall be forwarded directly to the MORPC COMMISSION 

for review and recommendation.  (See MORPC COMMISSION Review below.) 

 

    d) Small rezoning cases will be defined as those with less than 100 lots proposed.  Large rezon-

ing cases will be defined as those with greater than 100 lots proposed or cases using a 

wastewater treatment system other than conventional on-site or central sanitary sewer sys-

tem. 

 

2. LUPAC is also delegated the responsibility to review township zoning text amendments and rec-

ommend action to the MORPC COMMISSION. 

 

3. LUPAC shall also serve as a resource to the MORPC COMMISSION to review and recommend poli-

cies on a wide range of land use issues including, but not limited to, land use related legislative 

initiatives, local, county and regional land use plans and development code revisions. 

 

B. MEETINGS 

 

1. LUPAC shall meet as necessary to hear small township rezoning cases and township zoning text 

amendments.   

 

2. Quorum will be met by a simple majority of the members being present. 

 

3. LUPAC recommendations on small township rezoning cases shall be forwarded to the respective 

township on behalf of the MORPC COMMISSION as required by Section 519.12(E) of the Ohio Re-

vised Code. 

 

4. LUPAC recommended action on township zoning text amendments shall be forwarded to the 

MORPC COMMISSION for consideration.   

 

C. MORPC COMMISSION REVIEW 

 

1. Large township rezoning cases shall be reviewed by LUPAC.  LUPAC will forward  

recommendations to the MORPC COMMISSION for action. 

 

2. Only MORPC COMMISSION members from within Franklin County shall vote on recommendations 

on large township rezoning cases or township zoning text amendments. MORPC COMMISSION 

recommendations shall be forwarded to the respective township as required by Section 

519.12(E) of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 

3. The MORPC COMMISSION shall hear large township rezoning cases and make its recommenda-

tion at a regularly scheduled COMMISSION meeting.  The MORPC chair shall call a special COM-

MISSION meeting to hear a large township rezoning case if necessary to comply with the town-

ship public hearing date as specified in the Ohio Revised Code. 

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

6 

 

D. LUPAC MEMBERS, APPOINTMENTS AND OFFICERS 

 

1. LUPAC shall be comprised of five (5) MORPC COMMISSION members from within Franklin County 

as follows:  

 

1  -  Franklin County Engineer 

1  -  Franklin County at-large representative 

1  -  Franklin County municipality 

2  -  Franklin County townships 

  

2. The MORPC chair, upon input from the MORPC executive director and LUPAC chair, shall appoint 

LUPAC members and alternates annually (no later than May). 

 

3. LUPAC members shall elect a chair and vice chair annually (no later than July). 

 

4. Alternates may be used when a majority will not be reached by the LUPAC members or when 

members will be unable to attend.  Alternates should be from Franklin County and will be ap-

pointed by the chair of the COMMISSION.  Alternates will have the ability to vote. 

 

 

SECTION V – TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE 

 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Transportation Policy Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning COMMISSION. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee is provided for in the federally required Prospectus to the annu-

al Planning Work Program. 

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning COMMISSION is designated 

as the ”Metropolitan Planning Organization” (MPO) for the Columbus metropolitan planning area as 

authorized in federal transportation planning regulations and under agreement with the Ohio De-

partment of Transportation.  The Transportation Policy Committee is the forum for cooperative deci-

sion-making that will be taking the required approval actions as the MPO.  The metropolitan area, per 

23 United States Code §134 and 49 United States Code §5303, as amended, must have a continu-

ing, cooperative, and comprehensive (“3C”) transportation planning process that results in plans and 

programs that consider all transportation modes and supports metropolitan community development 

and social goals.  These plans and programs shall lead to the development and operation of an inte-

grated, intermodal transportation system that facilitates the efficient, economic movement of people 

and goods.  The MPO, in cooperation with the state and with operators of publicly owned transit ser-

vices, shall be responsible for carrying out the metropolitan transportation planning process. 

 

D. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting.  An affirma-

tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 

E. MEMBERSHIP 

 

Representation on the Transportation Policy Committee shall consist of local elected officials or their 

representatives, officials of public agencies that administer or operate major modes of transportation 

in the transportation study area, and appropriate State transportation officials; and such other local 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

7 

 

elected officials, public transportation agencies, or appropriate State officials as determined by the 

Transportation Policy Committee.  The transportation study area is that portion of central Ohio that 

has been identified and mutually agreed to be included in it by the Transportation Policy Committee 

and the Governor of Ohio, acting through the Ohio Department of Transportation, subject to the ap-

proval of the United States Department of Transportation.   

 

Representation shall be determined as follows: 

 

1. Full members of the COMMISSION that are located wholly or partially within the boundaries of the 

transportation study area. These members will have the same representatives on the Transporta-

tion Policy Committee as they have on the MORPC COMMISSION. 

 

 

2. The Commissioners of any county which is not a member of the COMMISSION, but which has ter-

ritory within the transportation planning area and which has entered into a commitment to partic-

ipate in the 3C process for that territory shall be entitled to one representative on the Transporta-

tion Policy Committee.   

 

3. Cities, villages and townships that are located wholly or partially within the boundaries of the 

transportation study area that are dues-paying members of the transportation program but are 

not full members of MORPC are entitled to one representative each on the Transportation Policy 

Committee, selected by the city, village or township. 

 

4. Transportation Agencies: 

 

In addition to the community representatives detailed above, the Transportation Policy Commit-

tee will offer representation (1 representative per entity) to the following transportation-related 

entities: 

 

a) Major authorities or agencies operating per the Ohio Revised Code, whose primary function is 

to provide transportation services or operate transportation facilities within the transportation 

study area such as, but not limited to: 

 

i. Central Ohio Transit Authority 

ii. Columbus Regional Airport Authority 

iii. Delaware Area Transit Agency 

iv. Licking County Transit Board 

v. Lancaster Public Transit System 

 

b) The Ohio Department of Transportation 

 

c) The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency 

 

d) Others, or modifications to the above, as may be required or recommended by the U.S. De-

partment of Transportation or the Ohio Department of Transportation 

 

e) Each transportation agency may designate a primary representative and an alternate repre-

sentative who may be seated at such times as the primary representative is unable to partic-

ipate in the Transportation Policy Committee.   

 

f) Other local elected officials or their representatives, public transportation agencies, or appro-

priate state officials as determined by the Transportation Policy Committee including officers 

of the COMMISSION in the event that the officer is not already a member of the Transporta-

tion Policy Committee and the current chairperson of the MORPC Community Advisory Com-

mittee.  

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

8 

 

F. OFFICERS 

 

The officers of the Transportation Policy Committee shall be the same as those of the COMMISSION 

and shall serve in the same roles and for the same terms.  The chair may appoint such special com-

mittees or task forces as may be necessary from time to time in order to perform the purpose of the 

Transportation Policy Committee, or as the Transportation Policy Committee may otherwise direct.  

The chair shall preside at all meetings of the Transportation Policy Committee.  The vice chair shall 

serve as chair during any absence of the Chair and shall assist the Chair in performance of duties.  It 

shall be the duty of the secretary to ensure that a full record of the proceedings of the Transportation 

Policy Committee is prepared and kept, and he or she shall perform such other duties as the Trans-

portation Policy Committee may from time to time direct. 

 

 

 

G. SUBCOMMITTEES 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee is advised by three standing subcommittees:  

 

1. The Community Advisory Committee is provided for in the Public Involvement Process (as is re-

quired under federal transportation planning regulations), which sets out participation require-

ments for Metropolitan Transportation Planning and Programming.   

 

2. The Transportation Advisory Committee is to provide technical advice to the Transportation Policy 

Committee as defined in the biennial Agreement between the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning COM-

MISSION and the State of Ohio, Department of Transportation, for Urban Transportation Planning 

and Transportation Programs. 

 

3. The Attributable Funds Committee is to provide advice to the Transportation Policy Committee, 

the Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC), and the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) on 

the development and execution of the processes used to allocate MORPC-attributable federal 

funds to projects and project sponsors.   

 

The Transportation Policy Committee shall adopt guidelines to govern the subcommittees, the selec-

tion process for subcommittee members, and establish terms to encourage diverse involvement in 

subcommittee membership and leadership.     

 

H. MEETINGS 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee will meet monthly as necessary.  

 

 

SECTION VI – REGIONAL POLICY ROUNDTABLE 

 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Regional Policy Roundtable for the Mid-Ohio Regional Plan-

ning COMMISSION. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable is a standing committee to evaluate and advise the COMMISSION on 

legislative issues and public policy matters of regional importance at the local, state, and federal lev-

el.  

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable seeks to develop a public policy agenda that aims to reflect the ob-



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

9 

 

jectives and ideals of both MORPC’s members and the greater community. The public policy agenda 

will be reviewed and adopted by the COMMISSION. The COMMISSION and MORPC staff will utilize the 

public policy agenda to proactively advocate for policies and opportunities to enhance the quality of 

life in central Ohio and advance the region. 

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable will identify new public policy areas, legislation, and issues of inter-

est. The Roundtable will research and provide recommendations to the COMMISSION on positions on 

legislative and executive issues.  

 

D. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting.  An affirma-

tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 

E. MEMBERSHIP 

 

Representation on the Regional Policy Roundtable shall consist of members from the COMMISSION, 

MORPC subcommittees and working groups, business community, non-profit organizations, education 

sector, and residents in the REGION.  

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable shall adopt guidelines for membership, the selection process, and es-

tablish terms to encourage diverse involvement in subcommittee membership and leadership.      

  

F. OFFICERS 

 

The chair of the Regional Policy Roundtable shall be a full member representative of the COMMIS-

SION and is selected and documented by the COMMISSION chair and executive director. He/she will 

serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION chair and executive director. 

 

The vice chair of the Regional Policy Roundtable shall be a full member representative of the COM-

MISSION and is selected by the COMMISSION chair and executive director. He/she will serve a two-

year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION chair and executive director. 

 

G. MEETINGS 

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable will meet every other month or as necessary.  

 

 

SECTION VII – SUSTAINABILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Sustainability Advisory Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning Commission. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee is a standing committee to evaluate and advise the COMMIS-

SION on matters of regional importance pertaining to environmental and fiscal sustainability, conser-

vation, and development. It may address topics such as air quality, conservation, energy, environmen-

tal infrastructure, farmland preservation, greenways, innovative land use regulations and tools, local 

food, materials management, water quality, sustainable growth and planning, related transportation 

research innovations, and regional systems.  

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee’s primary purpose is to advise and guide a diverse community 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

10 

 

of local governments and stakeholders along with MORPC working groups and staff on environmen-

tally and economically sustainable practices, opportunities, and tools that support regional growth 

and vitality in the Ccentral Ohio region.  To do so, the Committee shall regularly adopt goals, objec-

tives and strategies to further the regional goals outlined in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan and 

other plans as appropriate.  The objectives and strategies shall be consistent with other MORPC 

adopted strategic plans, public policy agenda, and The goals shall be consistent with other MORPC 

adopted strategic plans, policy agendas, and sustainability agreements such as the Green Pact. The 

COMMISSION and MORPC staff will utilize the goals to support existing related agency programs, with 

a focus on those in the departments of Energy & Air Quality and Environment & Planning & Environ-

mentDepartments, and to seek out opportunities to assist local governments, enhance the quality of 

life in Central Ohio, and advance the region. The Sustainability Advisory Committee will research and 

provide recommendations to the Commission as guided by the annual goals and as determined by 

the committeeCommittee.  

 

D. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting.  An affirma-

tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 

E. MEMBERSHIP 

 

Membership shall be nominated by the Executive Director, MORPC Department Directors, or commit-

tee members and appointed by the Committee Chair and Executive Director.    

 

To stagger the expiration of terms, one-half of the initial members shall serve for one-year terms and 

one-half of the members shall serve for two-year terms.  Thereafter, as terms expire, all members 

shall serve two year terms with the option to renew upon being nominated and approved by the 

Committee Chair and Executive Director. A member may serve a maximum of three consecutive 

terms.  

 

Representation on the Sustainability Advisory Committee shall include at least 12 members. All 

members shall be located within the MORPC Region. Due consideration shall be given to the make-up 

of the Committee to ensure no one entity is over-represented on the Committee. The Sustainability 

Advisory Committee composition shall consist of the following:  

 

1. A Chair and Vice Chair from COMMISSION. 

 

2.  One appointed representative from each subcommittee established in section H (subcommittees). 

 

3. At least three representatives from the Green Pact (one small community/Township representative, 

one large community representative, and one associate/organizational member representative). 

 

4. A minimum of three other seats including representatives from various stakeholder groups in the 

region, including but not limited to the business community, non-profit organizations, government, 

education sector, and community members.  

 

Under the guidance of the Executive Director and Committee Chair the Sustainability Advisory Com-

mittee shall adopt guidelines to establish the size limit of the Committee, and provisions to encour-

age diverse involvement in subcommittee membership and leadership.      

  

F. OFFICERS 

 

The chair of the Sustainability Advisory Committee must be a full member representative of the 

COMMISSION and is selected and documented by the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. 

He/she will serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. 

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

11 

 

The Vice Chair of the Sustainability Advisory Committee must be a full member representative of the 

COMMISSION and is selected by the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. He/she will serve a 

two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director.  

 

G. SUBCOMMITTEES 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee is advised by standing subcommittees or working groups as 

established by the Committee Chair and Executive Director to address key regional issue areas such 

as energy, air quality, food, materials management, greenways, water quality and resources, or other 

working groups as needed. 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee may adopt bylaws to govern the subcommittees, the selection 

process of subcommittee members, and establish provisions to encourage broad involvement in sub-

committee membership and leadership.   

 

H. MEETINGS 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee will meet as necessary. Quarterly meetings are recommended.  

 

SECTION VIII - CENTRAL OHIO RURAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Central Ohio Rural Transportation Planning COMMITTEE for the 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning COMMISSION. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The COMMITTEE is provided for the federally and state sponsored “Rural Transportation Planning Organi-

zation” (RTPO) and is administered by an ODOT approved Planning Work Program at the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning Commission. 

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The COMMITTEE is designated as the RTPO for Fairfield, Knox, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Pickaway and 

Union counties surrounding the Columbus metropolitan planning area in the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission’s area of interest and designated by a COMMISSION agreement with the Ohio Department of 

Transportation.  The COMMITTEE is the forum for cooperative decision-making that will be taking the re-

quired approval actions as the RTPO.  The State of Ohio has designated the RTPO area, per 23 USC § 

135(m), as amended, to enhance the planning, coordination, and implementation of statewide strategic 

long-range transportation plans and transportation improvement programs, with an emphasis on address-

ing the needs of non-metropolitan areas of the State.  

 

D. MEMBERSHIP  

 

In order to be a member of the Central Ohio RTPO, each County Board of Commissioners must execute a 

Memorandum of Understanding and resolution declaring membership in the COMMITTEE and the creation 

of a COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEE.  All terms of Central Ohio RTPO Membership are managed by the Memo-

randum of Understanding.  

 

E. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as at least one representative from at least two thirds of the member counties 

in the RTPO.  An affirmative vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 

F. MEMBERSHIP REPRESENTATION 

 

Fourteen representatives on the COMMITTEE shall consist of two local elected officials from each COUNTY 

SUBCOMMITTEE selected by the County Board of Commissioners for their respective county.  Seven addi-



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

12 

 

tional representatives on the COMMITTEE shall consist of one member from each COUNTY SUBCOMMIT-

TEE selected by the members of the COMMITTEE that are selected by the County Boards of Commission-

ers.  Each member representative may identify a designee to attend COMMITTEE meetings on their behalf 

with full member representation privilege. Additional ex-officio representatives shall include appropriate 

State and Federal transportation officials.  The members must be appointed biannually by their appointing 

authority.  A list of required and suggested members may be found in line item (J) of this document.  

 

G. OFFICERS 

 

The officers of the COMMITTEE shall be selected from the COMMITTEE membership annually and an-

nounced at the first official meeting of the COMMITTEE. The committee shall select the following officers: a 

Chairperson to preside over meetings, a Vice-Chairperson to act on the Chairperson’s behalf in his or her 

absence, and a Secretary to certify all minutes of COMMITTEE business meetings. 

 

H. MEETINGS 

 

The COMMITTEE will meet at a minimum of once annually.  Additional meetings may be called by the 

Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, fulfilling the Chair’s duties, or by any three (3) members of the COMMIT-

TEE. 

 

I. NOTICE 

 

Notice of meetings shall be mailed and/or electronically mailed at least one week in advance of the meet-

ing date, whenever practical. 

 

J. COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEES 

 

The COMMITTEE is advised by COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEES. One COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEE represents each 

county. 

 

Required and suggested representation shall be determined as follows: 

 

1. Required: One member of the County Board of Commissioners  

 

2. Required: The County Engineer 

 

3. Required: A representative of the chief executive officer of the City with the largest number of people 

residing within the boundaries of the county, as determined by the decennial census of the United 

States. 

 

4. Required: Full members the COMMISSION located wholly or partially within the boundaries of the sub-

committee county.  

 

5. Representation of other municipalities and townships that are located wholly or partially within the 

boundaries of the county. 

 

6. Representation of any local or regional planning commission that is serving the county wholly or par-

tially.  

 

7. Representation of agencies that provide transportation services to the county wholly or partially, in-

cluding: 

a) Transit Agencies 

b) Vehicle for Hire Companies 

c) Providers serving individuals with disabilities 

d) Providers serving seniors 

e) Providers serving at-risk populations 

 

8. Representation of the Ohio Department of Transportation District Office and/ or the County Garage. 

 

9. Representation of business and general citizenry. 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

13 

 

 

10. Any other representative that the Board of County Commissioners invites to participate. 

 

 

SECTION IX – REGIONAL DATA ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Regional Data Advisory Committee for the Mid-Ohio Re-

gional Planning Commission. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee is a standing committee to evaluate and advise the 

COMMISSION on matters of regional importance pertaining to data analysis. It will evaluate data 

needs in the region and prioritize development of tools used for analysis.  It will set data stand-

ards to enable data interoperability and assure data credibility. It will explore public/private part-

nerships and other collaboration opportunities around using data.  

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee seeks to develop and maintain collaboration around data 

development, publishing and usage for the purpose of analysis to reflect the objectives and ide-

als of both MORPC’s members and the greater community. The actions shall support other 

MORPC adopted strategic plans, and policy agendas. The COMMISSION and MORPC staff will uti-

lize the data to support existing related agency programs, and seek out opportunities to assist 

local governments, enhance the quality of life in Central Ohio, and advance the region. The Re-

gional Data Advisory Committee will research and provide recommendations to the Commission 

as guided by the annual goals and as determined by the committee.  

 

D. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting.  An af-

firmative vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 

E. MEMBERSHIP 

 

Membership shall be nominated by the Executive Director, MORPC Department Directors, or 

committee members and appointed by the Committee Chair and Executive Director.   All mem-

bers shall serve two year terms with the option to renew upon being nominated and approved by 

the Committee Chair and Executive Director. A member may serve a maximum of three consecu-

tive terms. 

 

Representation on the Regional Data Advisory Committee shall include at least 15 members. All 

members shall be located within the MORPC Region. Due consideration shall be given to the 

make-up of the Committee to ensure diverse representation from various entities throughout the 

region, especially from MORPC member communities. 

 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee composition shall consist of the following:  

 

1. A Chair from the COMMISSION. 

2. A Vice-Chair 

3. Representation from an Associate MORPC Member. 

4. Representation from the Central Ohio GIS User Group. 

5. Representation from the Economic Development Community. 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

14 

 

6. A minimum of five seats from community and business organizations including representa-

tives from education, health, tech entrepreneurs, transportation, and other data-intensive 

sectors. 

7. A minimum of six other seats including representatives from various stakeholder groups in 

the region, including but not limited to business, media, non-profits, and research organiza-

tions and community members. 

 

To stagger the expiration of terms, one-half of the initial members shall serve for one-year terms 

and one-half of the members shall serve for two-year terms.  Thereafter, as terms expire, all 

members shall serve two year terms with the option to renew upon being nominated and ap-

proved by the Committee Chair and Executive Director.   

 

Under the guidance of the Executive Director and Committee Chair, the Regional Data Advisory 

Committee shall adopt guidelines to establish the size limit of the Committee, and provisions to 

encourage diverse involvement in subcommittee membership and leadership.      

  

F. OFFICERS 

 
The chair of the Regional Data Advisory Committee must be a full member representative of the 

COMMISSION and is selected and documented by the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. 

He/she will serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. 

 

The Vice Chair of the Regional Data Advisory Committee is selected by the COMMISSION Chair and 

Executive Director. He/she will serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and 

Executive Director.  

 

 

G. MEETINGS 

 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee will meet as necessary. Quarterly meetings are recom-

mended.  
 

 

SECTION VIII – TIME OF TAKING EFFECT 

 

These Bylaws shall supersede any prior action of the COMMISSION inconsistent with such Bylaws.   

These Bylaws shall be effective upon the approval of the COMMISSION. 

 

 

 



Resolution 18-16 

Attachment 2 

________      

Amended April 19, 2001 by adoption of Resolution 8-01 

Amended November 15, 2001 by adoption of Resolution 29-01 

Amended April 21, 2005 by adoption of Resolution 13-05 

Amended November 10, 2011 by adoption of Resolution 46-11 

Amended September 19, 2013 by adoption of Resolution 21-13 

Amended June 12, 2014 by adoption of Resolution 16-14 

Amended October 13, 2016 by adoption of Resolution 18-16 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION  

BYLAWS 

SECTION I – COMMISSION 

 
A. PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 

 

On matters not addressed by the Articles of Agreement or Bylaws, Robert’s Rules of Order revised 

(current version) shall govern the meetings of MORPC and meetings of all committees included in 

these bylaws.  

 

B. REPRESENTATION 

 

Representatives to the COMMISSION must be selected as follows: 

 

1. Representation on the COMMISSION   

 

a) Representation for municipalities and for the unincorporated portions of townships shall be 

based upon the entire population of the municipality or the unincorporated portion of the 

township as reported in the most recent U.S. Census or MORPC estimate.   

 

b) Representation for counties shall be based upon the entire population of the villages and un-

incorporated portions of townships within that county plus 10% of the population of the cities 

within that county as reported in the most recent U.S. census or MORPC estimate.  In addi-

tion, the county engineer’s office of counties which are entirely within the MORPC Metropoli-

tan Planning Organization boundary shall be represented on the COMMISSION.   

 

c) Representation on the COMMISSION for full members shall be determined based upon Table 

1  Full Member Representation.   

 

d) Associate members shall have such representation as may be established by the COMMIS-

SION. 

Table 1:  Full Member Representation 

  Full Member Population Range 

Representatives Minimum Maximum 

1                    1           10,000  

2          10,001           40,000  

3          40,001           60,000  

4          60,001           80,000  

5          80,001        100,000  

6       100,001        120,000  

7       120,001        140,000  

8       140,001        160,000  

9       160,001        180,000  

10       180,001        200,000  

11       200,001        250,000  

12       250,001        300,000  

13       300,001        400,000  

14       400,001        500,000  

15       500,001  and up 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

2 

 

2. Appointing Authority 

 

a) Full member representatives shall be appointed and submitted to MORPC in writing by the 

mayor, chief executive officer, council president serving as mayor, or legislative body as de-

termined by the local unit of government.   

 

b) Associate member representatives shall be appointed by such means as may be established 

by the COMMISSION. 

 

C. FINANCIAL PROVISIONS AND APPORTIONMENT OF COSTS 

 

Each year the COMMISSION shall adopt a fee schedule by July 31 to be used in assessing members 

for the upcoming calendar year.  In every year evenly divisible by five, the COMMISSION shall estab-

lish a five-year fee schedule which it shall not exceed when adopting fees for each upcoming year.  

Each year the COMMISSION shall provide a non-binding estimate of fees for the next five (5) years for 

members to use in their financial planning.   

 

Each participating municipality, participating county and member township shall contribute annually 

according to the fee schedule adopted by the COMMISSION.  When per-capita fees are used, each 

member township shall contribute based on the population used to calculate its representation in 

Section I.B. 

 

The contribution for the first year of membership shall be paid during the month following the execu-

tion of an agreement between the member and the COMMISSION, and shall amount to that part of 

the appropriate annual participation cost pro-rated on the basis of the balance of the time remaining 

in that calendar year. 

 

In addition each participating full member shall contribute not more than seven (7) cents per capita 

of its population equal to its population used to calculate its representation in Section I.B.  The funds 

so contributed shall be set aside in a separate fund to amortize lease payments on the building or 

buildings housing the COMMISSION'S offices and shall be used for no other purpose.  In the event 

that the COMMISSION decides that further capital improvements are needed after this lease is paid 

out, the seven cents will continue to be committed to such purpose.  If they are not needed, then 

these contributions shall cease. 

 

Associate members shall contribute at the rate and in the manner as may be established at the time 

they become a participant, but this rate and manner may be revised by the COMMISSION from time to 

time. 

 

When per-capita fees are used in assessing annual member fees, all current year population figures 

for municipalities, townships and counties shall be based on the latest U.S. Census when available, or 

an estimate thereof made by the COMMISSION. 

 

D. QUORUM 

 

1. A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any COMMISSION 

meeting and/or committee meeting.  An affirmative vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary 

for any action taken.   

 

E. CODE OF ETHICS 

 

All members of the COMMISSION and all committees included within these Bylaws shall be aware of 

and governed by the current Code of Ethics adopted by MORPC. 

 

 

 

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

3 

 

SECTION II – EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 

A.  MEMBERSHIP 

 

 1. In 1998, one-half of the members were appointed for a one-year term and one-half of the mem-

bers for a two-year term by the COMMISSION at an annual meeting.  Thereafter, members are 

appointed for two-year terms by the COMMISSION at the annual meeting.  Nominees shall be 

from recommendations by the Nominating Committee, with input from the officers and Executive 

Committee.  Any member may be reappointed to an additional two terms of two years each (max-

imum membership of six years). 

 

 2. Additional voting members shall consist of the current officers, the most recent past chair willing 

to serve, selected committee chairs and working group chairs during the tenure of their groups. 

 

 3. The Nominating Committee shall attempt to encourage a diversity of membership representation 

on the Executive Committee by taking into consideration the following constituency groups: 

 

a) Representation from Columbus, suburbs, counties, villages  and townships 

b) Members who are elected and nonelected 

c) Members who are full-time (career) and part-time public officials 

 

 4. The vice chair of the COMMISSION shall chair the Executive Committee. 

 

B.   EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE DUTIES 

 

 1. The Executive Committee shall: 

 

a) Review, study and approve operational policy and routine financial and administrative mat-

ters as necessary. 

 

b) With the COMMISSION, develop and recommend public policy matters for discussion, input 

and approval. 

 

c) Develop, monitor and recommend changes to the COMMISSION in the overall strategic direc-

tion of the organization.  

 

  d) Meet monthly as necessary. 

  

  e) Be responsible for other duties as may be delegated or assigned to it by the COMMISSION. 

 

 2. The Executive Committee shall act on behalf of the full COMMISSION with regard to personnel 

matters.  Such authority shall include but not be limited to the following: 

 

a) Establishing annual compensation limits within amounts budgeted and appropriated by the 

COMMISSION for salaries and benefits. 

 

b) Reviewing and adopting personnel policies to be maintained in an employee guidebook. 

 

c) Making final and binding decisions on discrimination grievances as required by MORPC’s Af-

firmative Action program. 

 

d) Subject to the Articles of Agreement, establishing proper level of personnel decision-making 

authority for the executive director and directors and monitor staff personnel activities 

monthly. 

 

 3. The Executive Committee shall periodically review and recommend revisions to the COMMIS-

SION’s general administrative policies and rules.   



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

4 

 

SECTION III – FINANCIAL AUTHORIZATIONS 

 

A. The COMMISSION shall at least annually approve an operating and capital budget and authorize ap-

propriations. 

 

B. Subject to an approved budget and appropriation, the authority to enter into agreements shall be: 

 

1. Executive director for agreements up to $75,000 

 

2. Executive director plus an Executive Committee resolution for agreements greater than $75,000  

 

C. The following approvals shall be required to authorize the obligations of funds for goods and services 

(e.g. purchase order) and for the approval of payments (e.g. invoices): 

 

1. Finance director shall authorize all obligations and payments. 

 

2. Chief of staff or director of operations shall authorize all obligations and payments over $10,000. 

 

3. Executive director shall authorize all obligations and payments greater than $25,000. 

 

4. COMMISSION chair (or alternate officer) shall authorize all obligations and payments greater than 

$50,000. 

 

5. Executive director shall authorize all payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the chief of staff or direc-

tor of operations, regardless of amount.   

 

6. Chief of staff or director of operations shall authorize all payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the 

finance director, regardless of amount.   

 

7. The COMMISSION chair shall approve all payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the executive direc-

tor or any MORPC COMMISSION member, regardless of amount.  If the COMMISSION chair is un-

available, an alternate officer may approve; however, no official may authorize or sign for his/her 

own expenditure or payment.  Furthermore, no official may be the sole approval authority for any 

individual transaction.  Another officer shall authorize all payments (e.g. reimbursements) to the 

COMMISSION chair. 

 

In the absence of the finance director, the assistant finance director or equivalent staff member serving 

as the acting finance director shall have the above authority in this Section III of the finance director. In 

the absence of the chief of staff or director of operations, the staff member serving as the acting chief of 

staff or director of operations shall have the above authority in this Section III of the acting chief of staff 

or director of operations. In the absence of the executive director, the chief of staff or alternately desig-

nated acting executive director shall have the above authority in this Section III of the executive director.   

 

SECTION IV – LAND USE PLANNING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (LUPAC) 

 

A. PURPOSE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE LUPAC 

 

1.  a) LUPAC has been delegated the responsibility to review “small” township rezoning cases in un-

incorporated areas of Franklin County and make recommendations as required by Section 

519.12(E) of the Ohio Revised Code to the township on behalf of the MORPC COMMISSION. 

 

    b) The purpose of the LUPAC is to review rezoning cases in Franklin County for townships with 

township zoning. 

 

    c) All “large” township rezoning cases shall be forwarded directly to the MORPC COMMISSION 

for review and recommendation.  (See MORPC COMMISSION Review below.) 

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

5 

 

    d) Small rezoning cases will be defined as those with less than 100 lots proposed.  Large rezon-

ing cases will be defined as those with greater than 100 lots proposed or cases using a 

wastewater treatment system other than conventional on-site or central sanitary sewer sys-

tem. 

 

2. LUPAC is also delegated the responsibility to review township zoning text amendments and rec-

ommend action to the MORPC COMMISSION. 

 

3. LUPAC shall also serve as a resource to the MORPC COMMISSION to review and recommend poli-

cies on a wide range of land use issues including, but not limited to, land use related legislative 

initiatives, local, county and regional land use plans and development code revisions. 

 

B. MEETINGS 

 

1. LUPAC shall meet as necessary to hear small township rezoning cases and township zoning text 

amendments.   

 

2. Quorum will be met by a simple majority of the members being present. 

 

3. LUPAC recommendations on small township rezoning cases shall be forwarded to the respective 

township on behalf of the MORPC COMMISSION as required by Section 519.12(E) of the Ohio Re-

vised Code. 

 

4. LUPAC recommended action on township zoning text amendments shall be forwarded to the 

MORPC COMMISSION for consideration.   

 

C. MORPC COMMISSION REVIEW 

 

1. Large township rezoning cases shall be reviewed by LUPAC.  LUPAC will forward  

recommendations to the MORPC COMMISSION for action. 

 

2. Only MORPC COMMISSION members from within Franklin County shall vote on recommendations 

on large township rezoning cases or township zoning text amendments. MORPC COMMISSION 

recommendations shall be forwarded to the respective township as required by Section 

519.12(E) of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 

3. The MORPC COMMISSION shall hear large township rezoning cases and make its recommenda-

tion at a regularly scheduled COMMISSION meeting.  The MORPC chair shall call a special COM-

MISSION meeting to hear a large township rezoning case if necessary to comply with the town-

ship public hearing date as specified in the Ohio Revised Code. 

 

D. LUPAC MEMBERS, APPOINTMENTS AND OFFICERS 

 

1. LUPAC shall be comprised of five (5) MORPC COMMISSION members from within Franklin County 

as follows:  

 

1  -  Franklin County Engineer 

1  -  Franklin County at-large representative 

1  -  Franklin County municipality 

2  -  Franklin County townships 

  

2. The MORPC chair, upon input from the MORPC executive director and LUPAC chair, shall appoint 

LUPAC members and alternates annually (no later than May). 

 

3. LUPAC members shall elect a chair and vice chair annually (no later than July). 

 

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

6 

 

4. Alternates may be used when a majority will not be reached by the LUPAC members or when 

members will be unable to attend.  Alternates should be from Franklin County and will be ap-

pointed by the chair of the COMMISSION.  Alternates will have the ability to vote. 

 

 

SECTION V – TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE 

 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Transportation Policy Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning COMMISSION. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee is provided for in the federally required Prospectus to the annu-

al Planning Work Program. 

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning COMMISSION is designated 

as the ”Metropolitan Planning Organization” (MPO) for the Columbus metropolitan planning area as 

authorized in federal transportation planning regulations and under agreement with the Ohio De-

partment of Transportation.  The Transportation Policy Committee is the forum for cooperative deci-

sion-making that will be taking the required approval actions as the MPO.  The metropolitan area, per 

23 United States Code §134 and 49 United States Code §5303, as amended, must have a continu-

ing, cooperative, and comprehensive (“3C”) transportation planning process that results in plans and 

programs that consider all transportation modes and supports metropolitan community development 

and social goals.  These plans and programs shall lead to the development and operation of an inte-

grated, intermodal transportation system that facilitates the efficient, economic movement of people 

and goods.  The MPO, in cooperation with the state and with operators of publicly owned transit ser-

vices, shall be responsible for carrying out the metropolitan transportation planning process. 

 

D. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting.  An affirma-

tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 

E. MEMBERSHIP 

 

Representation on the Transportation Policy Committee shall consist of local elected officials or their 

representatives, officials of public agencies that administer or operate major modes of transportation 

in the transportation study area, and appropriate State transportation officials; and such other local 

elected officials, public transportation agencies, or appropriate State officials as determined by the 

Transportation Policy Committee.  The transportation study area is that portion of central Ohio that 

has been identified and mutually agreed to be included in it by the Transportation Policy Committee 

and the Governor of Ohio, acting through the Ohio Department of Transportation, subject to the ap-

proval of the United States Department of Transportation.   

 

Representation shall be determined as follows: 

 

1. Full members of the COMMISSION that are located wholly or partially within the boundaries of the 

transportation study area. These members will have the same representatives on the Transporta-

tion Policy Committee as they have on the MORPC COMMISSION. 

 

 

2. The Commissioners of any county which is not a member of the COMMISSION, but which has ter-

ritory within the transportation planning area and which has entered into a commitment to partic-



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

7 

 

ipate in the 3C process for that territory shall be entitled to one representative on the Transporta-

tion Policy Committee.   

 

3. Cities, villages and townships that are located wholly or partially within the boundaries of the 

transportation study area that are dues-paying members of the transportation program but are 

not full members of MORPC are entitled to one representative each on the Transportation Policy 

Committee, selected by the city, village or township. 

 

4. Transportation Agencies: 

 

In addition to the community representatives detailed above, the Transportation Policy Commit-

tee will offer representation (1 representative per entity) to the following transportation-related 

entities: 

 

a) Major authorities or agencies operating per the Ohio Revised Code, whose primary function is 

to provide transportation services or operate transportation facilities within the transportation 

study area such as, but not limited to: 

 

i. Central Ohio Transit Authority 

ii. Columbus Regional Airport Authority 

iii. Delaware Area Transit Agency 

iv. Licking County Transit Board 

v. Lancaster Public Transit System 

 

b) The Ohio Department of Transportation 

 

c) The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency 

 

d) Others, or modifications to the above, as may be required or recommended by the U.S. De-

partment of Transportation or the Ohio Department of Transportation 

 

e) Each transportation agency may designate a primary representative and an alternate repre-

sentative who may be seated at such times as the primary representative is unable to partic-

ipate in the Transportation Policy Committee.   

 

f) Other local elected officials or their representatives, public transportation agencies, or appro-

priate state officials as determined by the Transportation Policy Committee including officers 

of the COMMISSION in the event that the officer is not already a member of the Transporta-

tion Policy Committee and the current chairperson of the MORPC Community Advisory Com-

mittee.  

 

F. OFFICERS 

 

The officers of the Transportation Policy Committee shall be the same as those of the COMMISSION 

and shall serve in the same roles and for the same terms.  The chair may appoint such special com-

mittees or task forces as may be necessary from time to time in order to perform the purpose of the 

Transportation Policy Committee, or as the Transportation Policy Committee may otherwise direct.  

The chair shall preside at all meetings of the Transportation Policy Committee.  The vice chair shall 

serve as chair during any absence of the Chair and shall assist the Chair in performance of duties.  It 

shall be the duty of the secretary to ensure that a full record of the proceedings of the Transportation 

Policy Committee is prepared and kept, and he or she shall perform such other duties as the Trans-

portation Policy Committee may from time to time direct. 

 

G. SUBCOMMITTEES 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee is advised by three standing subcommittees:  

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

8 

 

1. The Community Advisory Committee is provided for in the Public Involvement Process (as is re-

quired under federal transportation planning regulations), which sets out participation require-

ments for Metropolitan Transportation Planning and Programming.   

 

2. The Transportation Advisory Committee is to provide technical advice to the Transportation Policy 

Committee as defined in the biennial Agreement between the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning COM-

MISSION and the State of Ohio, Department of Transportation, for Urban Transportation Planning 

and Transportation Programs. 

 

3. The Attributable Funds Committee is to provide advice to the Transportation Policy Committee, 

the Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC), and the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) on 

the development and execution of the processes used to allocate MORPC-attributable federal 

funds to projects and project sponsors.   

 

The Transportation Policy Committee shall adopt guidelines to govern the subcommittees, the selec-

tion process for subcommittee members, and establish terms to encourage diverse involvement in 

subcommittee membership and leadership.     

 

H. MEETINGS 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee will meet monthly as necessary.  

 

 

SECTION VI – REGIONAL POLICY ROUNDTABLE 

 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Regional Policy Roundtable for the Mid-Ohio Regional Plan-

ning COMMISSION. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable is a standing committee to evaluate and advise the COMMISSION on 

legislative issues and public policy matters of regional importance at the local, state, and federal lev-

el.  

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable seeks to develop a public policy agenda that aims to reflect the ob-

jectives and ideals of both MORPC’s members and the greater community. The public policy agenda 

will be reviewed and adopted by the COMMISSION. The COMMISSION and MORPC staff will utilize the 

public policy agenda to proactively advocate for policies and opportunities to enhance the quality of 

life in central Ohio and advance the region. 

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable will identify new public policy areas, legislation, and issues of inter-

est. The Roundtable will research and provide recommendations to the COMMISSION on positions on 

legislative and executive issues.  

 

D. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting.  An affirma-

tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 

E. MEMBERSHIP 

 

Representation on the Regional Policy Roundtable shall consist of members from the COMMISSION, 

MORPC subcommittees and working groups, business community, non-profit organizations, education 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

9 

 

sector, and residents in the REGION.  

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable shall adopt guidelines for membership, the selection process, and es-

tablish terms to encourage diverse involvement in subcommittee membership and leadership.      

  

F. OFFICERS 

 

The chair of the Regional Policy Roundtable shall be a full member representative of the COMMIS-

SION and is selected and documented by the COMMISSION chair and executive director. He/she will 

serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION chair and executive director. 

 

The vice chair of the Regional Policy Roundtable shall be a full member representative of the COM-

MISSION and is selected by the COMMISSION chair and executive director. He/she will serve a two-

year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION chair and executive director. 

 

G. MEETINGS 

 

The Regional Policy Roundtable will meet every other month or as necessary.  

 

 

SECTION VII – SUSTAINABILITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Sustainability Advisory Committee for the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning Commission. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee is a standing committee to evaluate and advise the COMMIS-

SION on matters of regional importance pertaining to environmental and fiscal sustainability. It may 

address topics such as air quality, energy, environmental infrastructure, farmland preservation, 

greenways, innovative land use regulations and tools, local food, materials management, water quali-

ty, sustainable growth and planning, related transportation research innovations, and regional sys-

tems.  

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee’s primary purpose is to advise and guide a diverse community 

of local governments and stakeholders along with MORPC working groups and staff on environmen-

tally and economically sustainable practices, opportunities, and tools that support regional growth 

and vitality in the Central Ohio region.  To do so, the Committee shall regularly adopt goals, objectives 

and strategies to further the regional goals outlined in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan and other 

plans as appropriate.  The  objectives and strategies shall be consistent with other MORPC adopted 

strategic plans, public policy agenda, and sustainability agreements. The COMMISSION and MORPC 

staff will utilize the goals to support existing related agency programs, with a focus on those in the 

departments of Energy & Air Quality and Planning & Environment, and to seek out opportunities to 

assist local governments, enhance the quality of life in Central Ohio, and advance the region. The 

Sustainability Advisory Committee will research and provide recommendations to the Commission as 

guided by the annual goals and as determined by the Committee.  

 

D. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting.  An affirma-

tive vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

10 

 

E. MEMBERSHIP 

 

Membership shall be nominated by the Executive Director, MORPC Department Directors, or commit-

tee members and appointed by the Committee Chair and Executive Director.    

 

To stagger the expiration of terms, one-half of the initial members shall serve for one-year terms and 

one-half of the members shall serve for two-year terms.  Thereafter, as terms expire, all members 

shall serve two year terms with the option to renew upon being nominated and approved by the 

Committee Chair and Executive Director. A member may serve a maximum of three consecutive 

terms.  

 

Representation on the Sustainability Advisory Committee shall include at least 12 members. All 

members shall be located within the MORPC Region. Due consideration shall be given to the make-up 

of the Committee to ensure no one entity is over-represented on the Committee. The Sustainability 

Advisory Committee composition shall consist of the following:  

 

1. A Chair and Vice Chair from COMMISSION. 

 

2.  One appointed representative from each subcommittee established in section H (subcommittees). 

 

3. At least three representatives from the Green Pact (one small community/Township representative, 

one large community representative, and one associate/organizational member representative). 

 

4. A minimum of three other seats including representatives from various stakeholder groups in the 

region, including but not limited to the business community, non-profit organizations, government, 

education sector, and community members.  

 

Under the guidance of the Executive Director and Committee Chair the Sustainability Advisory Com-

mittee shall adopt guidelines to establish the size limit of the Committee, and provisions to encour-

age diverse involvement in subcommittee membership and leadership.      

  

F. OFFICERS 

 

The chair of the Sustainability Advisory Committee must be a full member representative of the 

COMMISSION and is selected and documented by the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. 

He/she will serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. 

 

The Vice Chair of the Sustainability Advisory Committee must be a full member representative of the 

COMMISSION and is selected by the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. He/she will serve a 

two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director.  

 

G. SUBCOMMITTEES 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee is advised by standing subcommittees or working groups as 

established by the Committee Chair and Executive Director to address key regional issue areas such 

as energy, air quality, food, materials management, greenways, water quality and resources, or other 

working groups as needed. 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee may adopt bylaws to govern the subcommittees, the selection 

process of subcommittee members, and establish provisions to encourage broad involvement in sub-

committee membership and leadership.   

 

H. MEETINGS 

 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee will meet as necessary. Quarterly meetings are recommended.  

 

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

11 

 

SECTION VIII - CENTRAL OHIO RURAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Central Ohio Rural Transportation Planning COMMITTEE for the 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning COMMISSION. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The COMMITTEE is provided for the federally and state sponsored “Rural Transportation Planning Organi-

zation” (RTPO) and is administered by an ODOT approved Planning Work Program at the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning Commission. 

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The COMMITTEE is designated as the RTPO for Fairfield, Knox, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Pickaway and 

Union counties surrounding the Columbus metropolitan planning area in the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission’s area of interest and designated by a COMMISSION agreement with the Ohio Department of 

Transportation.  The COMMITTEE is the forum for cooperative decision-making that will be taking the re-

quired approval actions as the RTPO.  The State of Ohio has designated the RTPO area, per 23 USC § 

135(m), as amended, to enhance the planning, coordination, and implementation of statewide strategic 

long-range transportation plans and transportation improvement programs, with an emphasis on address-

ing the needs of non-metropolitan areas of the State.  

 

D. MEMBERSHIP  

 

In order to be a member of the Central Ohio RTPO, each County Board of Commissioners must execute a 

Memorandum of Understanding and resolution declaring membership in the COMMITTEE and the creation 

of a COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEE.  All terms of Central Ohio RTPO Membership are managed by the Memo-

randum of Understanding.  

 

E. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as at least one representative from at least two thirds of the member counties 

in the RTPO.  An affirmative vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 

F. MEMBERSHIP REPRESENTATION 

 

Fourteen representatives on the COMMITTEE shall consist of two local elected officials from each COUNTY 

SUBCOMMITTEE selected by the County Board of Commissioners for their respective county.  Seven addi-

tional representatives on the COMMITTEE shall consist of one member from each COUNTY SUBCOMMIT-

TEE selected by the members of the COMMITTEE that are selected by the County Boards of Commission-

ers.  Each member representative may identify a designee to attend COMMITTEE meetings on their behalf 

with full member representation privilege. Additional ex-officio representatives shall include appropriate 

State and Federal transportation officials.  The members must be appointed biannually by their appointing 

authority.  A list of required and suggested members may be found in line item (J) of this document.  

 

G. OFFICERS 

 

The officers of the COMMITTEE shall be selected from the COMMITTEE membership annually and an-

nounced at the first official meeting of the COMMITTEE. The committee shall select the following officers: a 

Chairperson to preside over meetings, a Vice-Chairperson to act on the Chairperson’s behalf in his or her 

absence, and a Secretary to certify all minutes of COMMITTEE business meetings. 

 

H. MEETINGS 

 

The COMMITTEE will meet at a minimum of once annually.  Additional meetings may be called by the 

Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, fulfilling the Chair’s duties, or by any three (3) members of the COMMIT-

TEE. 

 



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

12 

 

I. NOTICE 

 

Notice of meetings shall be mailed and/or electronically mailed at least one week in advance of the meet-

ing date, whenever practical. 

 

J. COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEES 

 

The COMMITTEE is advised by COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEES. One COUNTY SUBCOMMITTEE represents each 

county. 

 

Required and suggested representation shall be determined as follows: 

 

1. Required: One member of the County Board of Commissioners  

 

2. Required: The County Engineer 

 

3. Required: A representative of the chief executive officer of the City with the largest number of people 

residing within the boundaries of the county, as determined by the decennial census of the United 

States. 

 

4. Required: Full members the COMMISSION located wholly or partially within the boundaries of the sub-

committee county.  

 

5. Representation of other municipalities and townships that are located wholly or partially within the 

boundaries of the county. 

 

6. Representation of any local or regional planning commission that is serving the county wholly or par-

tially.  

 

7. Representation of agencies that provide transportation services to the county wholly or partially, in-

cluding: 

a) Transit Agencies 

b) Vehicle for Hire Companies 

c) Providers serving individuals with disabilities 

d) Providers serving seniors 

e) Providers serving at-risk populations 

 

8. Representation of the Ohio Department of Transportation District Office and/ or the County Garage. 

 

9. Representation of business and general citizenry. 

 

10. Any other representative that the Board of County Commissioners invites to participate. 

 

 

SECTION IX – REGIONAL DATA ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 

A. NAME 

 

The name of this committee shall be the Regional Data Advisory Committee for the Mid-Ohio Re-

gional Planning Commission. 

 

B. ORIGIN 

 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee is a standing committee to evaluate and advise the 

COMMISSION on matters of regional importance pertaining to data analysis. It will evaluate data 

needs in the region and prioritize development of tools used for analysis.  It will set data stand-

ards to enable data interoperability and assure data credibility. It will explore public/private part-

nerships and other collaboration opportunities around using data.  



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

13 

 

 

C. PURPOSE 

 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee seeks to develop and maintain collaboration around data 

development, publishing and usage for the purpose of analysis to reflect the objectives and ide-

als of both MORPC’s members and the greater community. The actions shall support other 

MORPC adopted strategic plans, and policy agendas. The COMMISSION and MORPC staff will uti-

lize the data to support existing related agency programs, and seek out opportunities to assist 

local governments, enhance the quality of life in Central Ohio, and advance the region. The Re-

gional Data Advisory Committee will research and provide recommendations to the Commission 

as guided by the annual goals and as determined by the committee.  

 

D. QUORUM 

 

A quorum shall be defined as those members present and eligible to vote at any meeting.  An af-

firmative vote of a majority of the quorum is necessary for any action taken.   

 

E. MEMBERSHIP 

 

Membership shall be nominated by the Executive Director, MORPC Department Directors, or 

committee members and appointed by the Committee Chair and Executive Director.   All mem-

bers shall serve two year terms with the option to renew upon being nominated and approved by 

the Committee Chair and Executive Director. A member may serve a maximum of three consecu-

tive terms. 

 

Representation on the Regional Data Advisory Committee shall include at least 15 members. All 

members shall be located within the MORPC Region. Due consideration shall be given to the 

make-up of the Committee to ensure diverse representation from various entities throughout the 

region, especially from MORPC member communities. 

 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee composition shall consist of the following:  

 

1. A Chair from the COMMISSION. 

2. A Vice-Chair 

3. Representation from an Associate MORPC Member. 

4. Representation from the Central Ohio GIS User Group. 

5. Representation from the Economic Development Community. 

6. A minimum of five seats from community and business organizations including representa-

tives from education, health, tech entrepreneurs, transportation, and other data-intensive 

sectors. 

7. A minimum of six other seats including representatives from various stakeholder groups in 

the region, including but not limited to business, media, non-profits, and research organiza-

tions and community members. 

 

To stagger the expiration of terms, one-half of the initial members shall serve for one-year terms 

and one-half of the members shall serve for two-year terms.  Thereafter, as terms expire, all 

members shall serve two year terms with the option to renew upon being nominated and ap-

proved by the Committee Chair and Executive Director.  

 

Under the guidance of the Executive Director and Committee Chair, the Regional Data Advisory 

Committee shall adopt guidelines to establish the size limit of the Committee, and provisions to 

encourage diverse involvement in subcommittee membership and leadership.      

  



 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 Bylaws  

 

14 

 

F. OFFICERS 

 
The chair of the Regional Data Advisory Committee must be a full member representative of the 

COMMISSION and is selected and documented by the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. 

He/she will serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and Executive Director. 

 

The Vice Chair of the Regional Data Advisory Committee is selected by the COMMISSION Chair and 

Executive Director. He/she will serve a two-year term at the pleasure of the COMMISSION Chair and 

Executive Director.  

 

G. MEETINGS 

 

The Regional Data Advisory Committee will meet as necessary. Quarterly meetings are recom-

mended.  
 

 

SECTION VIII – TIME OF TAKING EFFECT 

 

These Bylaws shall supersede any prior action of the COMMISSION inconsistent with such Bylaws.   

These Bylaws shall be effective upon the approval of the COMMISSION. 

 

 

 



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Director, Energy & Air Quality 

 

DATE: 

 

September 30, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 20-16: “Recognizing October 2016 as 

Energy Action Month” 

 

 
This memo supports the resolution for MORPC to recognize October 2016 as Energy 

Action Month. Sustainability is among the top priorities of MORPC as evident through 

the work of the Sustainability Advisory Committee as a top-level committee of the 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission and through the implementation of the 

Regional Sustainability Agenda. MORPC’s energy plans, programs, and initiatives are 

an important part of these efforts.  

 

Further, as embodied in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan and Public Policy 

Agenda, MORPC maintains goals to reduce energy consumption on a per capita basis 

and to promote energy efficiency along with an abundant supply of safe, reliable, 

affordable and clean sources of energy for the growing Central Ohio region. The 

reason is the fact that Central Ohio has a higher per capita energy use than the rest 

of Ohio and the United States as identified within the Regional Energy Action Plan 

released by MORPC and the National Association of Regional Councils (NARC). 

 

As a result, MORPC has been encouraging member governments to raise energy 

efficiency awareness. This effort includes the consideration and adoption by many 

communities to recognize October 2016 as National Energy Action Month. To date, 

eleven (11) local governments are participating: City of Bexley, City of Grove City, City 

of Groveport, City of Columbus, City of New Albany, City of Upper Arlington, City of 

Whitehall, City of Worthington, Clinton Township, Franklin County, and Madison 

Township. 

 

To increase the practice of energy efficiency, MORPC is utilizing its 30-year history 

and experience on residential energy efficiency services to support its members and 

disadvantaged populations to reduce their utility bills along with protecting their 

health, safety and comfort. To date, MORPC has worked with more than 15,000 

income-eligible households in Franklin County.  

 



Memo 

Proposed Resolution 20-16 

Page 2 

MORPC is committed to working with our member governments to deliver services to 

residents and support local government efforts in leading by example.  

 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 20-16 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 20-16 

 

“Recognizing October 2016 as Energy Action Month” 

 

WHEREAS, October was named Energy Action Month in order to raise awareness of the importance of 

conserving energy; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission, herein known as MORPC, recognizes the need for 

energy efficiency and an abundant supply of safe, reliable and affordable sources of energy for the growing region in 

Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC recognizes the importance of energy efficiency policies, funding, programs and benefits; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC works to advocate for federal, state and local policies and utility programs that foster 

economic growth and resiliency by using energy efficiency and diverse sources of energy; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is leading by example through regional planning efforts, programs and initiatives to 

reduce the energy consumption on a per capita basis in transportation, industrial, commercial and residential 

sectors; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is committed to educate and help communities, including disadvantaged populations, 

participate in financial and technical resources that provide more awareness and education and opportunities to 

take action on energy-saving improvements that reduce energy usage; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC will utilize its 30-year experience and technical expertise related to home weatherization 

services to support residents in their pursuit of increasing the safety and comfort of homes while lowering energy 

costs; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) recognizes October 2016 as Energy Action 

Month and urges all residents, businesses and communities in the region to make an effort to reduce energy 

consumption; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Commission recognizes October 2016 as Energy Action Month. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and deliver such 

other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall deem necessary and 

appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of this 

Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken in open meetings 

of this committee. 

 

 

_________________________________________  

Matt Greeson, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Effective date: October 1, 2016 

Submitted by: Christina O’Keeffe, Director of Energy & Air Quality 

Prepared by:  Rebecca Garrett, Executive Administrative Assistant 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 13, 2016 




